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NOTICE

I

NOTICE IS HEREBY GMN that the 20th Annual General
Meeting of the Members of KRITI INDUSTRIES (INDIA)
LIMITED will be held on Monday the 27th of September, 2010
at 4.00 PM. at Corporate Support Center situated at 4th Floor
'Chetak Chambers", 14 R. N. T. Marg, Indore (M.P)-452001 to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

l. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Balance Sheet as

at 3l" March 2010 and the Profit and Loss Account for
the year ended on that date together with the Directors'
report and Auditors' report thereon.

2. To declare Dividend for the Financial Year ended on 3l'
March 2010.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rakesh Kalra, who
is liable to retire by rotation, and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment,

4. To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Somnath Ghosh,
who is liable to retire by rotation, and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment.
To appoint Auditors to hold office fiom the conclusion of
this meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting and to fix their remuneration

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modifications, if any, the following resolution as Special
Resolutlon,

'RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 269, 309, 314 316 read with Schedule XIII
thereof (including any statutoty modification or re-
enactment theleof, for the time being in force) and other
applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act 1956

the members of the Company hereby accord their
approral to the re-appointment of Mr. Shiv Singh Mehta
who is already the Managing Director of alother
company, namely Kriti Nutrients Limited, as the
Managing Director of the Company for a further pedod
of three years with effect from lst October,2010 on the
remuneration and terms and conditions mentioDed in
tre explanatory statement annexed hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be

and is hereby authorized to increase, reduce, alter or vary
the terms of remuneration in such manner from time to
time as the Board may deem fit within th€ limits speci{ied
in Schedule )OII of the said Act, as existing or as

amended, modiffed or re-enacied from tirne to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pu$uant to Section 198

and all other applicable provisions of t}le Companies Act,
1956, the remuneration as set out in the enclosed
explanatory stalement be paid as minimum
remuneration to Mr Shiv Singh Mehta notwithstanding
that in any financial year of the Company during his
tenure as Maraging Director, the Company has made no
profit or profits are inadequate."

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without

modfications, if any, the following resolution as Sp€ci.l
Resolutio[
"RESOL\'ED Tn r*I pursuant to the provisions of Section
314 (18) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956 and subject to the approval of
Central Government and the rules and regulations
thereto, the consent of the members be and is hereby
accorded to the re-appointm€nt of Ms. Devki Mehta, a

relative of the directors of the company, to hold and
continue to hold the office or place of profit as an
employee of the compary w.€.f lst October 2010 on
remuneration and terms and conditions m€ntioned in
tI€ explanatory statement annexed hereto. "

Place : Indore By order ofthe Boerd,

Date : 3l-07-2010

Shiv Singh Mchte

Managing Director

Notesl
A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF
THE COMPANT PROXY FORM IN ORDER TO BE
VALID AND EFFECTIW MUST BE DEPOSITED AT
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT
LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TTME OF
HOLDING T1IE AFORESAID MEETING,
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books ofthe
Company will be closed ftom 2l " Septemb er 20lo lo 27i
September 2010 (both days indusive) for the purpose of
Annual General Meeting.
DTl'IDENDS
The Dividend, if approved by members at the
ensuing Annual General Me€ting, will be paid to
those members whose names stand registcrCd on
27" Sept€mber 2010.

i. As members in the Register of Members; and
ii. As beneficial owners as per details furnished

by the Depositories fot this purpose.

Members are requested to inform the Company
immediately, if not aheady informed, particulars of Bank
Account, i.e, Name and ad&ess of the Bank and its
Branch and the t'?e of accounl and its numbcr for thc
purpose of inclusion of particulars on the Dividend
Warrant to minimise the risk of fraudulent encashment.
As per the ptovisions of Section 109 of the Companies
Act, 1956, facility for making nomination is now available
to the shareholders in respect of the shares held by them.
Nomination forms can be obtained from the Registrar of
the Company.
Members attending the meeting are requested to bring
with them the attendance slip duly filled in to be handed
at the eotrance of tle meeting hall. They are request€d to
bling their copy ofthe Annual Report to the meeting.

l.

5.

7.
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6. Members are requested to:

A. Notify immediately any change in their address to
the Company quoting their folio numbers.

B. Send to the Company details of all folios, if holding
shares in identical order of names in more than one

folio, together with the Share Certificates for
consolidating the folios into one. The Share

Certificates will be returned to members after
making the requisite endorsement thereon.

C. Write to the Company at least 7 days befor€ the date

of the meetint, if any information witi regard to
accounls is required, so as to enable the
management to keep the information ready.

7, The relevant explanatory statem€nt Pu$uant to Section

f73(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the
business under item no. 6 & 7 as set out above is ann€xed

hereto.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION
u3(2) OF THE COMPAMES ACr, l9s6
ITEM NO. 6

The existing tenure of Mr. Shiy Singh Mehta as Managing
Direct<r of the company is expiring on 30th September, 2010.

Upon the recommendation of Remuneration Committee ofthe
board, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 3lst July
2010 has pass€d the resolution for his re-appointment as the
Managing Dir€ctor w.e,f. I st October, 2010 for a further P€riod
of three years.

Mr. Shiv Singh Mehta is a founder and key promoter of the
Company and under his dynamic leadership, initiatives and
directions, the Company has benefited in its overall operations.
His devotion, vision ald experience are essential for the
continuing growth of the Company. Hence the Board of
Drectors recommends the resolution for the re-appointment
of Mr. Shiv Singh Mehta w.e.f lst October, 2010 for the
approval of member in ensuing Auual General Meeting of the
Company on the following terms and conditions.

a) Salary: Rs. 250000/- per month
b) Perquisites and allowances: Rs. 50000/- per month

The perquisites and allowances shall include House
Rent Allowances, Medical Allowances and Leave
tEvel concession.

c) Commission: Payable for each financial year subject
to the overall maximum ceiling of 5% of the net
profit as computed in accordance with the
provisions of S€ction 349 & 350 of the Companies
Act, 1956 inclusive of salary, perquisites and
allowances as per (a) and (b) above.

d) Reimbu$ement and other facilities; not considered
as perquisities i
i. Reimbursement of expenses incurred for

travelling, boarding and lodging during
business tripsi expenses of telephone at
residence and celi phone;

ii. Provision ofcar with ddver;
iii. Payment ofclub fees.

e) Minimum Remuneration: ln the event of loss or
inadequacy of profits in any financial year during

the tenure, the company has no profit or its profits
are inadequate, the remuneration as set above in (a)

& (b) shall be the minimum remuneration payable

0 No sitting fees shall be payable for attending the
board rneeting or committee meeting th€reof.

The notice and explanatory statement may be treated as an
abstract of the terms and conditions of appointment and
rcmuneration payable to Mr. Shiv Singh Mehta, as required
under Section 302 ofthe Comparfes Act. 1956.
Mr. Shiv Singh Mehta himself, Mrs. Purnima Mehta, Mr. Sajian
Singh Mehta and Mr. S.S. Kothari being relatives of Mr. Shiv
Singh Mehta may be deemed to be interested in the resolution.

Additional lnformafion relevant for thc approval of the
remun€r.tion payable to Mr. Shiv Sturgh Mehta

l. Generallnformationl
a. Nature of Industry: The Company is engaged in

manufacturing, processing, buying, selling,
reselling, export, import of pipes and fitting PV.C.
extrusions, LDPE, HDPE etc.

b. Date or expected date of commencement of
commercial productioo: The Company was
incorporated on 12th March, 1990 and the
commercial production is caEied out since then.

c. Financial performance as per Audited Financial
Results for the y€ar ended 3l'March, 2010 and for
the year ended 31" March, 2009 are:

Particular 31.03.2010 31.03.2009

(Rs.In crores) (Rs. In crores)

Income from operation

Profit before depreciation

Profit Before Ta,r

Profit after tax

4r5.50

16.73

9.11

570.53

20.61

(2.45)

(2.61)

d. Export Pertbrmance:
* Foreign exchange earned for the financial year

ended 3tst March 2010: Rs.5563.65 Lacs
* Foreign exchange expenditure for the

financial year
ended 3lst March 2010: Rs.26.86 Lacs

2. Informetion about the appointec:

a. Background Details: Mr. Shiv Singh Mehta is a B.E.

and M.B.A. He has over 33 years of diverse
€r(pedence in the Corpont€ S€ctor.

b. Past Remuneration drawn (during 2009-2010) : Rs.

32.88 Lacs
c. Job Profile and suitability: Mr. Shiv Singh Mehta

€xercises substaDtial powers of management,
subtect to the superintendence, control and
direction ofthe Board of Directors/Chairrnan ofthe
Company. He is responsible for the operations and
affairs of the Company. Taking into
consideration his qualifications and expertise, Mr
Shiv Singh Mehta is best suited for the
responsibilities assigned to him by the Board of
Directors.

d. Remuneration Proposed: as above
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e. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to
industry, size of the Company, profile of the
position and person: The remunelation proposed is
commensurate with the remuneration packages
paid to similar senior level appointees in other
Companies.

3. Other information:
a. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for

improvement of profitability: The company has
taken the following steps for improvement in
performance during tle past Two years.* Irnproved market service and customer

interaction
* Sharp focus on big scale cost reduction,* Dealer rationalization and emphasis on

collection.* Training program for employees.* Continuous product improvement.
b. Expected increase in productivity and profiis in

measurcble terms: The above steps taken by the
company have resulted in increase in company's
profit. The improvement is exp€cted to continue in
the current year and beyond.

Your Board proposes fesolutioD, as s€t out in Item No 6 as a

Special Resolution.

ITEM NO, 7

Ms. Devki Mehta is working in the company as Mxnag..-
Special proiects and her present t€nure will end on 30th
S€ptember 2010. The Board of Directors at their m€eting held
on 3lst July 2010 re-appointed Ms. Devki Mehta as an
"Assistant General Manager- Special Poects" w'€.1 lst
October 2010 on a consolidated montNy salary slab (cost to
the company) ofRs. 70000- 10000 -900O0 for a petiod of2 years

i.e. up to 30th September 2012.

Ms. Devki Mehta is a BE (Civil) Gold Medalist from SGSITS,
Indore and MBA from S.P. lain Institute, Mumbai.
Payment of aemunetation to the relative of the director attracts
p.ovisions ofsection 3t4(18) ofthe Companics Act, 1956 and
requites consent of shareholders of the company by way of
special resolution subject to approval ofC€ntral Gove(nmeqt,
Ms. Devki Mehta being the relative of Mr Shiv Singh Mehta,
Mrs. Purnima M€hta, Mr. Saijan Singh Mehta and Dr. S. S.

Kothari, consent of shareholders is being sought under S.ction
314(lB) as a special resolution.
The Board commends the resolution for approral
None of tbe Directors, except Mr. Shiv Singh Mehta, Mrs.
Pumima Mehta, Mr. Sajjan Singh Mehta and Dr. S. S. Kothari
arc interested in the said resolution.

Detoils of the directors sceking re.ppointm€nt at th€ Alnual G€neral Meeting

Name ofth€ Director Mr. Rakesh Kalra Dr. Somn*h Ghosh Mr. Shtv Singh M.ht
Date of Bilth I1.09.1949 31.05.1953 03.03.r954

Date of appoiDiment 24.06.2006 03.03-2009 12.03.r990

Expertise in Specific areas Mecbanical Human Resource
Management,
Organizational Design and
Institutional Development

Finance, Marketing, Technical
and Business Administration.

Qualification B.E. M.A., M.Phil, Ph,D. B.E. , M.B.A.

List ofOutside
Directorship held

l. Mahindra Navistar
Automotives Ltd.

2. Mahindra Navistar
Engines P!1. Ltd.

l. KBS Bank Ltd.
2. PAN Network Pvt. Lld.
3. Kdti Nutrients Ltd.

Rairatan Global Wires Ltd.
Iciti Nutdenis Ltd.
Kriti Auto & Engine€ring
Plastics Prt. Ltd.
Sakam Trading An. Ltd.

Chairman/ Member of the
committees of the Board of
Directors of the Company

Audit Committee - Member;
Remunelation Committee-
Chairman

Remuneration Committee
- Member
Investors' Grieyance
Committee- Membei

Investor s Gri€Ence
Committee- Membcr
Financial Committ.e
-Chairman

Chairman / nember of the
Committees of Director of other
companies in which h€/she is a

Director
(a) Audit Committee
(b) Investors' Grievance Cornmittee

(c) Remuneration Committee

Nil
Kiti Nutrients Limited

Kriti Nutrients Limited

Raimtan Global Wir€s Limited
Rairatan Global Wircs Limited
Kriti Nutri€nts Limited
Rairatan Global Wires Limit€d

Nil
NI

Nil
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Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 20th Annual
Report together with Audited Accounts of the Company fot
the year ended on 3lst March, 2010.

FINANCIAL RESI'LTS

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended
3lst March 2010 is summarized below:

DIRECTORS'REPORT

(Rs. In Lacs )

DTRECTORS' RTSPONSIBII,ITY STATEMENT

Your Directors hereby confirm that -

l. In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with the
proper explanation relating to mat€rial departures.

2. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and have made judgment and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true
and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs ofthe Company as at end
of the financial year ended 3lst March, 2010 and of rhe
Profit and Loss Account of the Company for that peiod.

3, The Directors haye taten proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance ofadequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud ard other irregularities.

4. The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the
year ended 3lst March 2010 on a going concem basis_

SUBSIDARY COMPANYI

Post demerger for three months, Kriti Auto & Engineering
Plastics Privat€ Limit€d, Company's wholly ovrrred subsidiary,
achieved gross turnover of Rs. 549.04 lacs representing a profit
after tax of Rs. 32.48 lacs.

The statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act,
1956 containing the details of the Companys subsidiary is
attached. The copies of the Balance sheet, profit & Loss
account, Director's Report, Auditoy's Report etc. are attached
herewith.

DIRECTORS:

Mr. Rakesh Kalra and Dr. Somnath Ghosh retire by rotation
and being eligible offers themselves for re-appointment.

Mr. Prakash M. Pethe resigned as a director of the company
w.e.f 27.01.2010. The Board places on record its appreciation
for the valuable services rendered by him dudng his tenure.

STATUTORY INFORMATION:

PUBLIC DEPOSIT:

The company has not received/accepted any deposits ftom
public during the year udder revier^r.

PARTICULARS OF EI\I{?LOYEES

The Company does not have on its roll any employee drawing
remuneration attracting provisions of section 217(24) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975.

PARTICI'1A.RS CI]RRENT TXT.R. PREVIOUS 1XAR
2009-to m08 - 09

Total Income
Prof it bcfore Interest,
DepEciation & Taxc!
Less: Interest
Prolit before depreciation
Less: Depreciation
Profit/ (lrss) after d?reciation
Provision for Td(ation
Net Profit/(loss)
Less: Prior year lncome/Exp€nditu€
Add: Transfer fmm &serves
Add: Balaoc! Brought Forward
P.offt a\ailablc for Appropriation
Proposcd Dividend
Co.porate Dividend Tar
Transferred to Ceneral Reserv€
TransfaEed to Contingency Reserve
Balance Carried over to Balance Sheet

YEAR IN RITROSPECT

416E9.19 571ta.78
3034.06 2082.55

t361.,$
t672.58
,1,$,83

123t.75
320.42
9r0.93

0.00
0.00

ffi.92
1599.85

74.11
12.64

782.72
35.(X)

695.08

1876.41

206.14
452.3t

(246.17\
14,75

(260.e2)

to.37
235.O0

688.93
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

688.92

Year 2008-09 was a difficult year. Company felt strain of global
economic upheaval. The year under review was an impottant
milestone. Company improved its working and overall
perfotmance. It also demerged solvent division and
€ngineering moulding division into separate companies
pursuant to High Court order. Hence the above results
comprises of fust nine months of solvent and engineering
moulding division and twelve months of plastic dMsion.

DIVIDEND

In view of the improved performance of the company, your
directors are pleascd to recommend a dividend of 15% for the
year ended 31.03.2010 on 49f03520 equity shares of Rs. l/-
each aggregating to Rs . 74.41 lacs.

CONPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company has complied with the rnandatory proyisions on
Corporate Gov€mance as prescribed in the Listing Ageement
with thc Stock Exchanges. A sepatate report on Corporate
Goyernance is included as a part of the Annual Report along
with the Auditors' Certiffcate on its compliance.

SECRITARIAL COMPUANCE CERTIFICATE:

In pusuance of Section 383A of the Companies Act, 1956, a
certificate issued by Company Secretary in whole time practice
is enclosed herewith and forming part of this report.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &
OUTGO

Information as per section 217(lxe) read with Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the report of the Boird of
Directors) Rules, 1988 are given in the Annexure-A forming
part ofthe report.

AI,'DITORS

M/s. Subhash Deshpande & Co., CLartered Accountant, Indore
the Auditors of the Company retire at the conclusion of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer
themselves for re-appointm€nt.

INDUSTRIAL RE.LATIONS

Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation for
the contribution made by the company's worKorce at all levels
of operations for the success and progress of the company.

ACKNOMEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their appreciation of the co-
operation and assistance extended by the Central / Stat€
Government, Financial Institutions, Banl$. The Directors also
convey their sincere thank for the continued support given to
the Company by the esteemed shareholders, suppliers, dea.lers
and valued customers.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD,

S. S. Mehta
(Chairman)

Place : Indore
Date | 31st )uly,2010

A NNEXURE
Information as per Section 217(l) (e) read with the Companies (Disclosure ofParticulars in the report ofBoard ofDirectors) Rules
1988 and forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 3lst March 2010,

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(a) Energy CoDservation measules taken:

(l) Energy conservation devices have been installed
and the equipments ate maintained properly to
reduce energy consumption.

(2) New systems are being devised to reduce electric
power, fuel and water consumption.

(b) Additional Investment and proposals for reduction of
consumption of energy.

By relocating, modirying the available equipment, energy,
conservation measures are being implemented and maior
inyestments have not been made for equipments so fat

(c) Impact of above measures:

The above measures have resulted in energy saving and
subsequent decrease in the cost of production.

(d) Total energy consumption and energy consumprion per
unit of productioni

A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

ii) Through Steam Turbine/
Generator Univunit p€r ltr. of
Diesel oil Cost/Unit

2. Coal (specift quality & where used)
RDM/Steam B
Grade used in Boiler

Quantity (Tones)

Total Cost
Average Rate

3. Furoace Oil
Quantity (K.Ltr)
Total Amou[t
Average Rate

4. Others/intemal Generation
Total Cost

Quantity
Rate/Unit

7104.96 tt572
25639685.05 462E84E0

3608.69 4000.00

ETTRACTION R.EFINERY IECITHIN

45.56 67.96 112.91

97.50 167.60 332.a9

Nil Nil

CONSUMPTION PER T'NIT OF PRODUCTION

l. Electdcity
a) Purchased Units

Total Amount
Rate/Unit (Average Rs.)

b) Own Generation
i) Units
Units per ltr.of Diesel Oil
Cost per unit (Rs.)

2009-to 2008,09

ts034497 18890789
712t59ffi 84650272

4.74 4.48

146.204 59247

2.73 3.38
14.12 10.10

Electricity
(Units per ton)
Coal (Speciry quality)
(Kg. per ton)

Note Information in respect of Pipes & Fittings has not been
provided, as Form "A" under Section 217(l)(e) of the
Companies Act, 1956, is not applicable to these units.
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FORM - B

(A) (I) Research and Development (R & D)
Specific areas in which R & D is being carried out by
the Company.
The company undertakes upgardation ofits products
as a continuous process. New products and process
equipments have been developed resulting in
improved efficiency of operations.

(II) Benefits derived
With the installation of various additional
equipments it was possible to achieve consistelcy in
production and quality of products.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND
INNOVATION

The Company does not have any imported technology
and hence the details required to be given for the
imported technology is not applicable

(C) FOREIGN EXCTIANGE EARNING & OUTGO

(B)

Earning
FOB rate ofExport
Outgoing
a) CIF Value of lmports

(Rs. In Lacs)
2009-r0 2008-09

s563.65 12s96.45

ll7t2.o4 2122.t2
b) Expenditure in Foreign Cuffency 26.86 45.77
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Kriti group is committed to the adoption of best governance practices and is instill in company's vision, processes, arld

structures to make decisions that ensure long term sustainability and thus creating value for all its stakeholders continuousll On

the same lines the Company has always followed fair business and corpomte Practices while dealing with the shareholders,

cmployees, customers, creditors, lenders and the society at large.

In line with this philosophy, the company continuously strives for excellence through adoPtion ofbest governance. Your cumpatry

is compliant with all the provisions of Clause 49 ofthe Listing Agreement ofthe Stock Exchange. The details ofconpliance are as

follows:

r. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of Board

The Boatd ofDirectors ofthe KIIL consists ofan optimum combination of executive, non-executive and independent directors, to

ensure the independent functioning of the board. The Board consists of eight Ditectors. Out of which six are non-executive

directors. Four out ofthe six non-executive directors are indePendelrt.

The Board of Directors has an adequate representation of professional, qualified, Non-Executive and Independent Directols.

Decisions at the Boald and Committee meetings are taken unanimously.

Directors retiring by rotation and seeking for re-appointment

Mr Rakesh Kalra and Dr Somnath Ghosh are the directors liable to rctire by rotation and being eligible oll'er themselves for rc-

appointment.

As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, information such as brief resume, nature of expertise and other

directorships is given here below.

Name of the Director Mr. Rakesh Kalra Dr- somnath Ghosh

f)ate of Birth I I.09.1949 31.05.1953

Date of appointment 24.06.2006 03.03.2009

Expertise in Specific areas Mechanical
Engineeering

Human Resource

Management,
Organizational Design and

lnstitutiorlal Developmcnt

Qualification M.A., M.Phrl, Ph.D.

List ofOutside
Directorship held

1. Mahindra Navistar

Automotives Ltd.
2. Mahindra Navistar

l. KtsS BaDk Ltd.

2. PAN Netb'ork P!'t. Ltd.

3, Iciti Nutrients Ltd.

Chairman/ Member of the
committees of the Board of
Directors of the Company

Audit Committee - Member;
Remuneration Committee-
Chairman

Remuneration Committee
- Member
lnvestors' Grievance

Committee- Member

Chairman / member of the
Commiftees of Director of other
companies in which he/she is a

Director
(a) Audit Committee Nil

Kriti Nutrierts Lilllited
KritiNutrients Limited

(b) Investors' Gdevance Committee
c) Remuneration Committee

The composition of the Board of Directors and the number of board committee in which they are chailman/ membel as on

31.03.2010 are as under:

Nil
Nil
Nil
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Name Category No. of Directorship in

other Public Limited
Companies

No, of Committ€e
position held in othet

Public Limited Companles
ehairrnan Melnli.r

Shri Sajjan Singh Mehta Promoter & Non-Executive Director Nil NiI NiI
Dr S. S. Kothari Non-Executive Director Two Nil Nil
Shri V Bhole Nominee Director- IDBI Nil NiI NiI
Smt- Purnima Mehta Promoter & Executive Director Nil one
Shri Shiv Singh Mehta Promoter & Executive Director Onc Two
Shri Manoi Fadnis Independent & Non-Executive Director Four Two One
Shri Rakesh Kalra Independent & Non-Executive Director One Nil-- Nil
Dr. Somnath Ghosh Independent & Non-Executive Director Two Nil Two

Board Procedure

During the year under review, six meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The dates of the meetings were decided in advance
and key information was placed before the Board. The Board ofDirectors meetings were held on 30th June, 2009; 29th July, 2009i
2lst August, 2009; 26th October, 2009; l2th lanuary, 2010; 27th ]anuary, 2010.

Attendance record of Directors

The record ofattendance ofthe directon at Board Meetings held dudng the year and at the last Annual Ceneral Mceting were:

Two

Name

Dr. S. S. Kothari

No, of Board
Meetings held

No. of Board Meetings
Attended

Attendance at the la6t
AGM held on 30th

Shri Vinod Bhole

Smt. Purnima Mehta

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta Yes

Shri Manoj Fadnis Yes

Shri Rakesh Kalra No
Dr Somnath Ghosh

Shri Pravin Kasliwal* No

Shri Prakash Pethe*
*Resigned from the directorship w.e.f. 30,09.2009
f Resigned from the directorship we.f. 27.01.2010

AUDIT COMMITTEE

(.4.) Terms of reference

The Audit Committee has adequate powers and detailed terms of reference to play effective role as required under the
provisions ofthe Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 ofthe Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges.

(B) Constitution and Composition

The terms of reference of the audit committee are odensive and include all that is mandated in clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement with the Stock Exchaage and Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company has complied with the
requirements ofclause 49(IIXA) ofthe Listing Agreements as regards composition ofthe Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee ofthe Company as on 3lst N{arch 2010 compdses ofthe following Directors ofthe Company.

Yes

Name ofthe Director Designation

Shri Manoj Fadnis Chairman

Shri V. NI. Bhole Nlember

Shri Rakesh Kalra Member

Shri Prakash M. Pethe. . Member*
- WE.F. 27.01.2010, Shri Prakash M. Pethe ceases to be the member of the audit committee.
All the three members ofthe audit committee are non-executive directors and independent directors.
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4A(c) Meeting and attendance during the year

Four meetings were held during the financial year2009-10 on 29th June 2009,29th July,2009,26th October,2009 and 27th Januar\,.
2010. The attendance ofeach member of the committee is as under:

Name ofthe Director No, of Meeting attended
Shri Manoj Fadnis

Shri Prakash M. Pethe

III. SUBSIDARY COMPANY
The Audit comminee of tlle company reviews the financial statements of the subsidiary company. The minutes of the Board
meetings were placed before the Board of Directors ofthe Company for their review

Shri V. Bhole

Shri Rakesh Kalra

REMUNERATION OF DIRXCTORS
(A) Terms of reference

The Remuneration Committee recommends remuneration, promotions, increments etc. for the whole time directors and
relative of the directors to the Board for approval

(B) Constitution and Composition

ryI" 9"t*!:lrygI1comPany as on 3lst March, 2010 comprises of the following Directors of rhe Companv.

Name of the Director Designation

Shri Rakesh Kalra Chairman

Shri Manoj Fadnis Member

All the three members ofthe remuneration committee are non-"*".ttiue and irrd"p".dent director.
Remuneration to Managing Director and Executive Director
The terms of remuneration of Shri Shiy Singh Mehta, Managing Director and Smt. Purnima Mehta, Executive Director has alreadi,
been fixed by the Board ofdirectors and approved by the shireholders at Annual General Meeting. During the financial year 2009
10, the particulars of remuneration paid to Whole-time Directors are as under: -

Dr. Somnath Ghosh Member

Name ofthe Director Salary (Rs.) Perquisites Commission Period of Contract

(Rs. in Lacs)

Mr. Shiv Singh Mehta 12.50 3 years starting from lst October 200;

Total

Mrs. Purnima Mehta 10.04 5 years starting from lst lul)' 2006

Remuneration of Non- Executive Directors.
The details ofremuneration paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the financial year 2009-10 are given below. Non-Executive
Directors are not entitled fo! any remnneration other than the sitting fees.

S No. N
r Shri Saj.ian Singh Mehta 6000

-i- Dr. S.S. Kothari 1000

Shri Pravin Kasliwal 2000

Shri V Bhole 10000

Shri Manoj Fadnis 10000

Dr Somnath Ghosh

Shri Prakash M. Pethe 4000

DISCLOSURES

A. Disclosure regarding materially signilicant related party transactions:
The Company has not entered into any transactions of material nature with the promoters or directors or their relatives or
any Companies or firms in which they are directly or indirectly interested, that may have any potential conflict with rhe
interests of the Company.
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B. Disclosure of non-compliance by the Company:
'lhere was no instance ofnon- compliance on any matter related to the capital markets, during the last three years.

COMMUNICATION TO SHARTHOI,DERS

The Company publishes quarterly and yearly results as required under the Listing Agreement in the prescribed format. The rcsults
are also sent to the Stock Exchanges for general informaticn and for posting the same on their website. The notice of the AGM
along with the rePort is sent to the shareholders well in advance of the AGM. The gist of the notice is also published in the
neq'spapers. In addition, the Stock Exchanges are also notified of any important developments that may matedally affect the
working ofthe Company. Disclosures with regard to the shareholding panern, change in major shareholding efc- is also periodically
sent to the Stock Exchanges as required under the SEBI Take-Over Regulations.

LISTING

Thc Company's shares are traded on BSE and MPSE.
Managenent Discussion and Analysis Report form part ofthe Annual Report.

INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
q9l!"rqqDi.!:!9.. .f th" C.-p""y. 

_

_ Nam

Shri Sajjan Singh Mehta Chairman

Dr Somnath Ghosh Member

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta Memher

Shri Pravin Kasliwal* Member
*Resigned we.l 30.09.2009

Except Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, other membem are on executive directon. The Committee specifically looks into the shareholders'
and investors' complaints on matters relating to transfer of shares, non receipt of annual report and dividend warrants etc. In
addition, the committee also looks into matters, which can facilitate better investor services and relations.

INFORMATION ON GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
The details ofthe location and time for last three Annual General Meetings are given hereunder:

Location Time

2006-2007 Hotel President Planet, 3, R.N.T. Marg, Indore - 452 001 29'h September, 2007 4.00 P M.

2007 2008 Hotel Crown Palace, Indore - 452 001 29$ September, 2008 4.00 P. M.

I
I

2008-2009 " Chetak Chambers", 4th Floor, t4 R.N.T. Marg, Indore 452 O}t 30'h Septembes 2009 4.00 P M.

GENERAL SHARXHOLDER INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting

The 20'f Annual General Meeting ofthe Company will be held on Monday, the 27'h September 2010 at 4.00 PM. at 4rh Floor Chetak
Ch"mbcrs. l4 R. N. T. Marg. lndore.

Financial Calendar for the year 2010-ll (Provisional)

Results for rhe first quarter ending 30th June, 2010 By end of July, 2010

Results for the second quaner ending 30th September 2010 By end ofOctober,2010

Results for the Third quarter ending 3lst December, 2010 By end of January. 201I

Rcslllts (Audiled) for rhe fourth quarler ending ] lsr March,20ll By end of May, 201I

Book Closure Dates

The Cornpany's Share Transfer Book will remain closed from 2l" september 2010 to 27'6 September 2010 (both days inclusive) for
purpose ofAnnual General Meeting.

Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Company's shares are presently listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai and Madhya Pradesh Stock Exchange,
Madhya Pradesh. The Company has paid annual listing fee for rhe year 2010- I l.

10
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Stock Code

BSF : - 526421

NSDL&CDSL ISIN :- IN[,479D01038

Market Price Data (Rs.)

The monthly high and low quotations ofshares ofthe Company traded at the Stock Exchange, Mum6ai during the financial year
2009 l0 are givenbelow.

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)

April, 2009 5.75

May, 2009 4.21

.June, 2009 6.24

luly, 2009 6.75 5.42

August, 2009 7.65

September, 2009 9.r3 7.04

October,2009 9.50 7.35

November, 2009 9.50 7.37

December, 2009 7.O0

January, 2010# 14.90 7.24

February. 20 I 0# t4.70 7.14

March,20l0# 9.30

I Prices after demerger

Share Transfer System

The Share Transfer-cum-lnvestors Grievance Committee attends to share transfer formalities once in a fortniSht. Demat requests

are normally confirmed within an average period of l5 days from the date of receipt. The Company has appointed following agency

as Share Transfer Agent (Electronic + Physical). The shareholders may address th€ir communication, suggestions, ![ievances and

queries toi

Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Limited

2nd Floor, Alankar Point,
4-A, Raigarh Kothi,
Geeta Bhawan Chouraha,
A.B. Road, lndore- 452 001 (M.P)
Tel. 07 3l -2491298, F 

^x 
07 3l-40657 98

E-mail: ankit 4321@yahoo.com

Shareholding Pattern & Distribution of Shareholding

qg1:|dl4*91".:q103!9t0
Category No. of Shares held Percentage of Sh-areholding 

-
Ln.
l. Promoters

1 a. Indian Promoters

b. Foreign Promoiers

2. Persons acting in concert

3259367a

3259?674Sub-Total

a
Institutional lnvestors

a. Financial Institution and Banks

b. FIIs

&

li

*

11
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Others

a. Corporate Bodies

b. Indian Public
c. NRIS/OCBs

799635

16035735

157923

l.6l

0.32
d. Clearing Members 14949 0.03

Sub-Totel 9
G

Distribution of Sharebolding as on 3tst March, 2010

l-1000 4319 67.26

l00l-2000 I153 17.96

2001-3000 29t
3001-4000 5.65

4001-5000 o.42

5001..10000 2.14

10001 above 131

6421 l00.oo

Dematerialisation of Shares & Liquidity 
i

Theshares ofthe Company are under compulsory demat segment and are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumba and Madhya I
Pradesh Stock Exchange, Indore. The Company's shares are available for trading in the depository ofbotf, NSDL & cDsL, l

Details of Demat Shares as on 3lst Ma.ch 2010

CDSL 1625682
Sub'Total 4s709840
Shares in

Outstanding Convertible Instruments
There are no outstanding warrants or any convertible instruments.

Plant locations ofthe Company

Kliti Industries (India) Limited
l3/1, Tarpura,
75-86, Sector IL lndustrial Area
Pithampur, Dist. Dhar (M.P)

Address for communication

The shareholders may address their communication, suggestions, grievances and queries to:
Ankit Consultancy Pyt. Limited
2nd Floor, Alankar Point,
4-4, Rajgarh Kothi, Geeta Bhawan Chouraha,
A.B. Road, Indore- 452 001 (M.p)
TeI. 07 3t -2491298, Fa\ O73t -4065798

E-mail ankit_4321@tFhoo.com

Auditors' Certificate on Corpotate Govemance
The company has obtained a certificate from the auditors of r}le company regarding compliances with the provisions of tlre
corporate governance laid down in Clause 49 (VII) ofthe Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges.

12
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VERNANCE

Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLAINCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GO

To the Shareholders of Kriti [ndushies (India) Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governaace by Kriti Industries (India) Limited,
Indore for the year ended 3lst March, 2010 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement ofthe said Company
with Stock Exchanges in India.

The compliance ofthe conditions ofCorporate Governance is the responsibility ofthe management. Our €xamination
was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has

complied with the conditions ofCorporate Governanc€ as stiPulated in the above Listing Agre€ment.

As required by the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of India we have to state that no
investor grievances were pending for a period of one month against the Company as per the records maintained by

the Investor / Shareholders Grievance Committ€e.

We further stat€ that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Subhash Deshpande & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(FRN-000476c)

Place ; Indore
Date i 3lst July, 2010 (R.D. Asawa)

Partner
M.No.16562

13



v-

Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

j

r

i@

I
I

I. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND
DEVELOPMENT

Plastics are penetrating ir every segment of life.

They are creeping into every nook and corner ofour
homes and offices. The Indian plastics industry has

been growing at a phenornenal rate of 15 Per cent

over the years. The demand for pipes in India is also

increasing at a fast pace. The rapid growth in
construction, Government's efforts to increase the

agriculture and growth of segments like electronics

and telecommunication are giving good boost to our

Industry.

Opportunity

l For the Eleventh Five Year Plan, the Gol is

aiming to add 11 mn hectares of irrigational
facilities, entailing an investment of Rs. 1'580

bn'

I Continuation of subsidy schemes from the
Government agencies will also help to generate

good volume and fast Srowth of Micro
.: ... . irrigation.

'r')-ihieii:

The Pipe Industry is highly Raw Material (RM)

. intensiv€ with the RM cost accounts for more than
70-80% of the total cost for PVC pipe. The industry
relies heavily on imports.

Local / unrecognized sector creating stiff
comperilion by offering lower rates &
compromising in quality aspects ofproducts.

Business Strategy

The company is conscious of its brand value and

enhancing it by offering newer and better quality
products, advertising and promotions. Company is
also increasing its customers based in agriculture
and building sector. The Company has entered in a
big way in Drip Irrigation under Micro Irrigation
Projects of various State Governments' subsidy

scheme. Further the company has introduced new
range of accessories for the piping system. There is

also a greater focus on institutional sales in
intrastructure, telecommunication and building
construction sectors. The company has defined its
product vertical into Irrigation, Building Products

and Micro Irrigation & Infrastructure to develop &
focus each activify separatd

2, FINANCIALPERFORMANCE

The financial statements are prepared in compliance

with the Companies Act, 1956 and as per the

generally accepted accounting principles, policies

and practices prevalent in India. The Company's
Iinancial performance is discussed in details under

the head "Financial Results" in Directors' Report to

the Members.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR
ADEQUACY

The company has established a comprehensive internal
controls commensurating with size and nature of its
operations across all business units, which ensure that all

the assets ofthe company are duly recorded at fair value,

and safeguarded against all the losses from any

unauthorized use or disposition. The system has been

designed, so as to provide reasonable assurance in
respect of recording and providing relevant and reliable

fi nancial and operational in[ormat ion.

DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES AND
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The company conducts in-house training programs for
motivating and developing leadership qualities at all

Ievels. The company has been successful this year in
attracting and retaining some of the best talents in the

industry.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Estimates and expectations stated in this Management

Discussion and Analysis Report may be "forward-
looking statements" within the meaning of applicable

securities, Iaws and regulations. Actual results could

differ materially from those expressed or implied.
Important factors that could make a difference to your

Cornpany's operations include economic conditions
affecting demand/ supply and price conditions in the

domestic and international markets, changes in the

Government regulations, tax laws, and other statutes and

incidental factors.

14
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

CIN: L25206MP1990PLC005732

To,

The Members,
KRITI INDUSTRIES UNDIA) LIMTTED
INDORE.

I have examined the registers, records, books and papers of KRITI INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED as lequired to be maintained

under the Companie, eat, tgSe, and the rules made there under and also the provisions contained in the dernorandum and

Articles of Association of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2010. In my opinion, and to the best of my

information and according to the eiaminations carded out by me and exPlanations and certificationt furnished to me by the

Company and its officers, I certify that in respect ofthe aforesaid financial year:

I. The Company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure 'A'to this certiffcate, as Pe! the Provisions ofthe

Act and the rules made there under and all entries therein have been duly recorded.

2. The Company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated in Annexure 'B'to this certificate, with the Registrar of

Companies, as per due date offiling and the date offiling mentioned in the Annexure

3. The company, being a Public Limited company no comment is required on maximum number ofmembers and invitation

to public for subscription ofshares and acceptance ofdePosits.

4. The Board of Directors duly met Six(6) times respectively on 30th June, 2009; 29th July,2009; 21st August,2009; 26th

October,2009;l2thJanuary,i0l0;2Tthlanuary,2010.TheCompanycloseditsRegisterofMembersfrom23rdSePtember,
2009 to 30th September, ZbOS in respect of which meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly

recorded in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

5. The Company has made all necessary compliance of Section 154 of the Act

5. The Annual Geneml Meeting for the financial year ended on 3lst March,2009 was held on 30th sePtember,2009 after giving

due notice to the members of the Company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in Minutes Book

maintained for tle PurPose.

7, No Exra Ordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year'

g. The Company has not advanced any loans to its Directors or persons or firms or companies referred to under Sedion 295

of the Act

9. The Company has not entered into any contact attracting with the provision ofSection 297 ofthe Act.

10. The company has made necessary entries in the register maintained under section 301 ofthe Act.

l l. Mr. Sauarbh Singh Mehta son of Managing Director and Executive Director was appointed on the offict of Assistant Ceneral

Manager (Opera'tions) of the company with effect from lst fuly, 2009 after due approval from Board of Directors in their

meetiig dated 30th |une, 2009. Thi sarne was approved by Members in the Annual General Meeting dated 30th September,

2009.

No. Of shares Follo No.

Mr Pradip P. Abhyankar
Mrs. Sandhya P. Abhyankar 2000 14589

Mrs. Sandhya P Abhyankar
Mr. Pradip P. Abhyankar r3946

13. The Company:

a. Pursuant to the order dated 25th November, 2009 by Hon'ble High court of Madhya Pradesh Bench at Indore, the

company allotted 8 equity shares against every l0 equity shares held by equity shareholders ofthe company. Howevel,

the aompany has deliveied alt the Share Certificates on lodgement thereof for transfer/transmission of securities in

accordance with the provisions ofthe Act

b. has not deposited any amount in a separate bank account as no dividend was declared during the financial year

c. was not required to post warrants for dividends to the members since no dividend was declared'

15
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d. Has duly transferred Rs.97587.00 in Investor Education and Protection Fund.

e. Has duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.

14. The Board of Directors ofthe Company is duly colstituted and the appointment ofDirectors has been duly made.

15. The Company has not appointed any Managing Director/Whole-Time Director/Manager during the financial year.

16. The Company has not appointed any sole selling agents during the financial year.

t7.

19.

The Company made an application to the Central Government for approval under Section 314(lB) in respect of
appointment of Mr. Saurabh Singh Mehta as specified in point number 11, However the approval so sought was granted by
rhe Government not exceeding Rs. 50000 with certain conditions through a letter dated 0lst April 2010. The Company has

obtained all required approval and order from Registrar of Companies, Regional Director and Hon'ble High Court of
Nladhya Pradesh Bench at Indore, for approving the scheme of arrangement, the company allotted 8 equity sharcs against

every I 0 equity shares held by equity shareholders of the company.

The Directors have disclosed their interest in other firms/ companies to the Board of Directors pusuant to the Provisions of
the Act and the rules made tlere under.

Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Madhya Pradesh , Bench at Indore, the
company has allotted eight Equity shares ofRs. 1/- each for every existing ten shares held by the shareholders on the record

date.

20. The Company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.

21. The Company has not issued Preference Shares and Debentures so there was no redemption of preference shares or
debentures during the financial year.

There were no transactions necessitating the Company to keep in abeyance the rights to dividend, rights shares and bonus

shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

On the basis ofinformation and explanation given to me the Company has not tulvited/accepted any deposits including any

unsecured loans falling within the purview ofsection 58A during the finalcial year.

The amount borrowed by the Company from Financial Institutions, Banks and others during the financial year ending is

within the borowing limits of the company.

The Company has made loans, advances, given guarantees and provided securities to other bodies corporate, and has made

n€cessary entries in the register kept for the purpose.

The Company has not altered the provisions ofthe Memorandum with respect to the situation ofthe Company's registered

office from one state to another during the year under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to the objects of the Company during the

,year under scrutiny.

The Company has not altered the provisions ofthe Memorandum with respect to the name of the Company during the year

under scrutiny.

The Company has not altered the provisions ofthe Mernorandum with respect to the Share Capital ofthe Company during
the year under scrutiny.

30. The Company has not altered its Articles ofAssociation during the year under scrutiny.

31. There were no prosecution initialed against or show cause notices received by the company and no fines or penalties or any

other punishment was imposed on the Company during the financial year for offences under the Act.

32. The Company has not received any moneys as security from its employees during the financial year.

33, The Cornpany has deposited both employees and employers contribution to Provident Fund with prescribed authorities
pursuant to the provisions of Section 418 ofthe Companies Act, 1956.

ASHISH KARODIA

-*'31'J::"#l
Place Indore

Dare:19.05.2010

23.

25.

29.
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SECRTTARIAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE - ANNEXURX . "A''
Registers as maintained by the Company:

S. No- Section No. Natne of the Register

L
2,

3.

4.

5.

6.

209
150

303

307

r43(l)
108

Books ofAccounts
Register of Members
Register of Directors

Register of Director's Shareholding
Register of Charges

Register of share transfer

SECRTTARIAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE - ANNEXI'RE . "B'
Forms and Retums as filed by the Company with Registrar of Companies, Regiona.l Director, Central Government or other
authorities duiing the financial year ended 3lst March 2010.

S. Form No./ Return
No.

Date of
Filling

Recerpt
No.

Whether filed
within prescribed
lime

Whethet addittonal
fees paid (if delay
in filing)

l. Annual Return as on 30.09.2009 I l.l1.09 P404A6730 N.A.

Annual Accounts for 3l-03-2009 t 2-10.09 P35795830

3. Form 23B 7.10.09 s01072289 N.A.

Form 8 24.10.09 471360564 Yes

Form l7 02.04.09 A59r 6703 t N.A.
IForm l7 02.04.09 459167064

Form 17 02.o4.o9 A59155991 Yes

Form 32 25.04.09 A60650470

9. Form 17 29.04.09 460810553 N.A.
II
r!
rl

I
10. Foim 17 02.06.09 462831698 N.A.

11. Form 17 02.06.09 N.A.A62831896

12. Form 23 20.10.09 A71088892 Yes

13. Form 32 20.r0.09 A71088595 Yes

14. Form I INV 24.10.09 47 t363451

l5 Form 7J 14.12.09 A745ta67l Yes

16. Form 32 l5-02.10 478497112 Yes

17. Form 17 22.O1.10 4769319t4 Yes

18. Form 17 22.Ot.tO A7693t955

19. Form 17 22.01.r0 r'.76931997 N.A.

20. Form 2l r r.0l -10 476216514

21. Form 8 29.12.O9 475459883 Yes

22. Form 17 27.Ol..tO 477 t75982 N.A.

23. Form 32 08.03.10 479966475 N.A.

24. Form 24B l2.l 1.09 1.72542426 Yes

ASHTSH KARODIA
Company Secretary

C.P No. 6375

Placq Indore
Date:19.05.2010
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Auditor's Report
To the Members of
Kriti Industries (India) Limited
l. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Kriti lndustries (India) Limited as at 3lst March,2010 and also the Profit and

Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for tlle year ended on that date annexed thereto. These finarcial

statements are the responsibility ofthe Company's manigement, Oui responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audil in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable issurance a-bout whether lhe financial statements are free of material

misstatem'ent. An audit includes examininq, on a test basis, evidence supponing the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. An audit also includes assessirig the accounting principles used and signilicant estimates made by management.

"r 
*aU 

", ""ut"uting 
t11e overall financial siatement preseritition. 

-We 
believe thaiour audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.
Further to our comments in Annexure referred to above, we rePort that:
a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of oul knowledge and belief were necessary

for the purposes ofour audit.
Ul in o* ,ipi"li"", proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so lar as appears from our

examination of such books.
c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreemenl with

the books of account.
d) In our opinion, tle Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply

with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 ofthe Companies Act, 1956.

e) On the basis of the"wdtten representations received ftom the directors as on 3lst March 2010 and taken on record by

the Board of Directors, we rep^ort that none of the directors is disqualified as on 3lst March, 2010 ftom being aPPointed

as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub section ( 1) of section 274 of the ComPanies Act, 1955 
-

f) In our opinion and to the best oiour information and according to the explanations givenlo us, the said accounts read

with sig;ificant accounting policies and other notes thereon, giva the information required by the Companie-s Act, 1956,

in the franner so required"aid give a true and fair view in coiformity with the accounting principles generally accepted

in Tndia:
i) Io lhe case of the Balance Sheet. ofthe state ofaffairs ofthe ComPany as at 3lst March.20l0
ii; ln the case of Profit and Loss Account. of the profil for the year ended on that date.and
iii) In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the casl flows for the year ended on that date

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 as amended by Companies (Auditom Repo*) (Amendment)1

Order, 2ooa iisued by thie Central Governmint oflndia in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 ofthe ComPanies Act' 
l

Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

1956 and according'to information & explanation given to us on our _enquiries and in consideration ofthe schemc oI

arrangement as per"note No 17 to the notes on accounis and on the basis ofsuih checks we considered appropriate. we further

state that:
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

(ii) (a)
(b)

(c)

(iii) (a)

verification.
(c) On the demerger of the company s solvent divisioi with Kriti Nutrients Ltd, and hived off oJ engineering and' - 

moulding dMiion with Iciti Auto & Engineering Plastic P!t. Ltd. as Per note no. 17 to the Notes on Accounts,

i" oul ofi"ion and according to ihJ nfolmation and exilanitlons given to ui, the procedures of. physical

verficatiin of inventories folloived by the management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of t}Ie

comoanv and the nalure of its business.
In o'ur 6pinion and according to the information and explanations given_ to us, the complny has maintained
proper rdcords of its inventori;s and no material discrepanaies were noticed on physical verification. 

.'Cotirpany has granted unsecured loans to a subsidiary lompany, Maximum amount outstanding during the year

Rs.16.39 lacs, however closing balance was Rs.l.25 lacs
(b) Rate of interest and other ter"ms and conditions of loan given are not prima-facie prejudicial to the interest of

company.
{c) Receipt of principal and inlerest are regular as stiPulaled
(d) Sin(e'receipt ofprincipal and interest ii regular ai stipulaled and therefore queslion ofoverdue does nol arise.

i"j Co-p"tty Lu. tiken insecured loan froni a company covered in the r€gister maintained U/S 30I of the Act'
amount involved 368.041acs, ma:cimum outstanding during the year l031.30lacs.

(f) Rate ofinterest and other terms and conditions of ioan taken are not pdma-facie preiudicial to the interest ofthe
comPany.

(s) Pavment of principal and interest is regl ar as stiPulated
(iv) li our 6pinion aird aciording to the inforiration ani explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control

(b) The company has physically yerified certain assets during the year in accordance with a programme of

verificatioir, uitri.it ii .j"r opinion provides for physical verihcation of the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.

According io the informatiin and'explanationi given to us no matedal discrePancies were noticed on such
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system commensurate with the size ofthe Company and the nature ofits business for the_ purchase of, in t'entor"' arl d

dxed assets and for the sale ofgoods and servicei. Further, the basis ofour examination ofthe books and records oi iir:
company and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across nor har-e beei

infoimei of any continiring failure to correct majoaweaknesses in the aforesaid internal control systeni- 
_(v) (a) ln our opinion and iccording lo the infoimation and explanalions given to us. the particulars of ci'nlracts or

'arrangenientsreferredtoinSiction30loflheActthalneedtobeentiredintolbereglslermaintainedrrnderth.rr

Section, have been so entered.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no tlansaction in excess of Rs. 5 lakhs il

respect oiany party and hence the question of riasonable prices in respect of such transactions regards 1() the

prevailing market prices does not arise.
vi) The iompanyias not aicepted any deposits from the public within-the meaning ofsections 58A and 5tiAA of lhe Act

and the rules framed there under and therefore clause is not appli(able to the comPany.

vii) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate intemal audit iyitem commettsuraie with the size and the natrrrc ol its

business.
viii) The company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of sec 209( l ) (d) of the companies Act, 1956

ix)' (a) Acci,rdihg to the iiformation and explanation given tors and the records ofthe Company examincd b.vrs' in our

opinion, ihe Company has been genienlly regilar in depositing undisputed statutory dues, jncludingPtoviCe;ii

Firnd, Investor Ed'ucaiion and Pr5tection'Fuid, Employies Staie Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth'J'a.:i.

Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other statutory dues as applicable with the apPropriatc authorities durj.q
the year.

$) Acc6rding to the records ofthe Company, the disputed dues in respect ofSal€s Ta-\, Entiy'lax and Inr.omc Ta-r a;e

as under:

(x) The Company has no

Place : Indore
Date : I9th May 2010

and the immediately preceding financial year
(xi) Based on our audit piocedureiand as pei rhe information and explanalion given by the managcmcnt. wc are of th. nPini"n

that the company his not defaulted inihe repayment ofdues to_ financial inititutions, banks or ,lebenture h'rl.lels

Gii) tc;o;din; tJthJ information and explanatio'nJgiven to us and b_ased on the documents and records Produceri iretot e us. the' 'Company"hasnotgivenanyloansuirdud,r"rra""ronthebasisofsccuritybywayofpledgeofshares,debentulesandother

secudties.
(rdii) The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund / nidhi /mutual benefit fund / societies are not apFii.able to the

Company.
(xiv) In oui opinlon, the Company is not a dealer or trader in shares, secudties, debentures and other investments.

i*uj Co^pu":y hu" 
"ot 

given ;ny guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or institutions. and therefore commcnting over

terms and conditions does nol arise.
(*i) fo Oe l".t ofour kno*ledge ancl belief and according to the information and explanations given to us., term ioans availed b)'
' ' th" Co-p-y *ere, prima-Tacie, applied by the Comiany for the- purposes for which the loans were obtained

(xvii)According tJ the cair flow statement and other recoris examinedty us and the information and explanations given to us, on
' 'an 

overalibasis, funds raised on short term basis have prima-facie, not been used during the year for long term investmcof

(fixed assets, etc).
(xviii)ihe Company has not made preferential allotment of shares to the parties and companies covered under section 30t of lhtl

Act.
(xix) The Company has not issued any debentures during the year.

i*i ffr" C.-ir"ri f,as not raised any money by public issue iuring the year, and therefore question ofend use-does not arise

i*il f. tft" l"i .i"* knowledge ani belief'ani iccording to the in"formitlon and explanations given to us, no fraud on or bl tbe

company was noticed or detected during the year. 
For subhash Deshpande & co.

where <Iisou-ispute is pendine

D€puty commissioner
Deputy commissioner
Deputy commissioner
Appellate Board
CESTAT
CESTAT
CESTAT
CESTAT
CESTAT
CESTAT

losses at the end financialyear it has not cash losscs during the crutent

Chartered Accouniants
(FRN'000476c)

(R.D. Asawa)
Partner

M.No. i6562

r836995
7238189
1335795
63822
1808843
77sOOl
1700000
2329153
520544
1825043
3165657

2004-05
2005 06
2006-07
2006-07
2007-08
2004-05
2004-05
2006-07
2007 -08
2008-09
2008 09

Central Sales Tax
Central Sales Tax
Entry Tax
Entry Tax
Central Excise Duty
Central Excise Duty
Central Excise Duty
Central Excise Duty
Central Eacise Duty
Central Excise
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3lst MARCH,2010

( Amt in Rs.)

PARTICULARS SCI{EDT'LE 3r.03.2010 3r.03.2009

SOURCES OF FUNDS
l. Share Holders' Fund

(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves & Surplus

2, Loan Funds
(a) Secured Loans
(b) Unsecured Loans

3, Deferrcd Tax Liability/Ass€ts ( Net)

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

l. Fixed Assets
(a) Gross Block
(b) Less: Depreciation
(c) Net Block
(d) Add: Capital Work in Progress

2, Inve6tment ( At Cost)
3. Cuc€nt Assets, Loans & Advaqces
(a) lnventories
(b) Sundry Debtors
(c) Cash & Bank Balances
(d) Loans & Advances

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions

(a) Cunent Liabilities
(b) Provisions

Net Curent Assets (F-G)

Accounting Policies & Notes on
Accounts

AJ per our report ofeven date attached.
For Subhash Deshpande & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000467C

R.D. Asawa
(Panner)
M.No. 16552

Place: Indore
Dat€ : l9th May, 2010

4960352O
271395459

308515213
36679858

45442087

_J!636137.

492421576
2to76t945
281659531

1236t35
282895766

77904ffiO

530283790
1424541154

88973007
14q439502

1011150753

530609936
29705045

650314982
350435771
7t1636t37

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A
B

c
c-l

Total

IJ

G

62004400
2472792r6

588238148

0

78314572
975836336

Total

Shiv SiDSI Mehta
(Managing Di(cetor)

91362r883
345038433
568581450

54053278
622636728

942600

538s18814
211000729

63218794
20t729417

1014467754

6622tO746

662210746

_352257008
975836336

Saijar Singh Meht.
(Director)
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3rst MARCH, 2010

( Amt itr Rs.)

SCHEDULE 3t-03.2010 3 r.03.2009PARTICTJLARS

INCOME
Income from Operations (Gross)
Less : Excise Dutv
Income from Opirations (Net)
Miscellaneous Income
Increase/ (Decrease) in Stod<

EXPENDITURT
Cost of Material
Manufacturing Expenses
Employees Remuneration & Benefits
Other Expenses
Financial Charyes

ProfiV (Loss) before Depreciation
Less : Depreciation for the year
Profft/ (Loss) before Tax
{Refer Note No.l7 of Schedule P)
iroftt/ (Loss) from continuing operations before tax
Current Tax
Fringe Benefit Tax
Deferred Tax
Profrt/ (Loss) from contitrutug operations after lax (A)
Profit/ (Loss) from Discontin-uiog operations of
solvent division bcfore tax
(Refer Note No.l7 of Schedute P)
CurreDt Tax
Frins€ Benefit Tax
Defe"rred Tax
Profit/ (Loss) from Discontiouirg operations of
Solreot division after tax (B)
Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinuing operations of
Ensineeri.nc Moulditrc Division before tax
(Re"fer Note-No.17 of Schedule P)
Current Tax
Fringe Benefit Tax
Defeired Tax
Profft/ (Loss) from DiscoDti.nuing oPerations of
EDginedrilg Moulditrt Division tftei tax ('C)
Net Profit after Tar ( A+B+C)
Lessi Prior Year Income Exp/(Income) - Net
Add : Transfer from General Reserve
Add : Transfer from Contingency Reserve
Add : Previous Year Profit B--roug'ht forward
Profit available for appropriation Total

ProDosed Dividend
Corborate Dividend Tax
Trarisferred to General Reserve
Transferred to Contingency Reserve
Balarce carried over io B6lance Sheet 

Total

Earnins Per Shares (Face Value of Rs l/- each)
Basic dDiluted (Refer to note 14 ofNotes on accounts)

As per our report ofeven date attached.
FoiSubhash Deshpande & Co'
Chartered Accountants

H
I
T

Total

4t54976477
169743516

3985233361
t394l7AO

5705269094
_257813748
5447455346

66092s8
(194845453)
52592t9151

K
L

M
N
o

Total

D

3292607Lot
t9913U97
r02210615
1721t2682
t36t{t68.5

_39!D2t6580
t6725A2ll

44083135
123175076

122998234
2rm0000

0
31t9497

94478737

(,104258r)

0
0

&53234

(r04959rs)

{119520

0
0

1509272

271021,J3
91913070

0
0'0

68892216
159985286

---n44os2g
1264518

78271781
3500000

59508459

4399663219
235618344
104604851
311077459
187640933

5238604806
-- 

'f,6t4u5_4523t462
(246171t7)

48226845
0

930000

47296845

(698s2887)

0
380000

0

(70232887)

(2991076)

0
165000

0

(3rs6076)
(26092118)

10377 t5
20000000

3500000
72522049

0
0
0
0

68892216
68892216-----a41.55

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R.D, Asawa
(Panner)
M.No. 16562

Place: Indore
Date : l9th May, 2010

Shiv Singh Mehta
(Managing Dircetor)

Sajjan Singh Mehta
(Director)

21



Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account

( Amt in Rs.)

31.03.20r0 31.03.2009

i

t
SCHEDULE -A
SHARI CAPITAL

AUTHORISEI)
(80000000 Equity Shares of Rs 1/- each and
2000000 Optional Convertible Preference Shares of
Rs 10/ each. Total of Rs.100000000/-)

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PATD UP
(49603520 Equity Shares of Rs 1/- each fully paid up allotted on
27.01.2010 in lieu of€isting 52004400 equity shares ofRs.l/- each

pursuant to the Scheme ofArran8ement approved by the Hon'ble
High Coun of M.P)
(Previous year 62004400 equity shares ofRs l/- each fully paid up)

SCHEDULE-B
RESERVES & SURPLUS

Gencisl Res€rvc
Opening Balance

Add : Transfer from Oil DMsion
Less : Appropdation pursuant to the Scheme ofArrangement

Add: Transfer from P&L approved by the Hon'ble High Court of M.P

Less:TransfertoP&L
Closing Balance

Contingency Reserve
Opening Bdance
Lcss: liansllr to P&L
Add; Transfer liom P&L
Closing Balancc

Share Premium Account

Capital Reserve
Share Forefeiture Account

Profit & Loss Account

lfixxm000 100000000

49603520 62004400

496/J3s20 52004400

130000000

58271781
71728219
7827VAl

l5fixxp00
0

150000000

3s0mo0
5000000

ire rooo

273000

695084s9
Total 271395459

1500000
0

150000000

i50000000
0

150000000

__20a0000a
130000000

5000000

3500000

1500000

46614000

273000

648922t6
247279216



Kriti Industries (India) Ltd. K
Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account

( Amt in Rs.)

31.03.2010 31.03.2009

SCHEDULE-C
SECURED LOAN

A. LONG TERM LOAN
(Secured by First Charge/Mortgage cleated/to be created

on Fixed Assets of the Company and

Personal Guarantee of Directors)

B. WORKING CAPITAL LOAN
(Secured by hypothecation of
Finished Goods, Raw Matedal, Stock

in process,Store and Spares, SundrY

Debtors,Export Bills, Receivables

and Second Charge on FUed Assets

ofthe Compaay and Pelsonal Gurantee

of Director and his lelative)

SCHEDULE.C.T
UNSECURED LOAN
(Inter-Corporate Deposits)

l3a57s2l4 389384634

t3a5752t4 389384634

169939999 1988535I'1

I

169939999 | 98853514 l

rotal (A+B) --30E515ru -l!!4!14! I
I

3ffi79858 0

Total 36679858
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd. Kri

Schedule Forming Part ofthe Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss AccountsI

I

I

l

SG

^-(
r. 1

I

I

(

I

I

l(
I

I

I

I

SCHEDULE. D
FIXED ASSETS

( Amt b Rs.)

( Alt in Rr.)

PARTICUI-AIIS GROSS EIOCK DEPRICIATION \fI BLocK

01.0.1.09 Additions Transfer on

odrll tet
Tolal Gm$s

Blo&
01.0409 For rh€ ftduction Tnnsfcr on

D.nt'ter
T,r.l tl.al'!t 11.01.2009

L I,l:rd r158r57 0 0 967968 11588189 0 0 0 01 lrxt 11368157

Coodwill 797770 0 0 197710 0 797n0 0 797710 0 a 0

F&tory BLr dinS 167364675 170J3405 0 105281332 791'.74A 43623222 fl43933 27241895 2t4752fi t Sfllt- 12374t453

Pl4t & ivllchinery 606167208 110537688 35 879 ,{15168121 Er81695 230517650 19n9rsr 1112547 138197908 ll9386]{t I7lTIta ]tt8{9559

Dies & Moulds 77695448 5607.15 0 406t498 74t947r5 509,u898 5855209 t94226 t4357Eil t rrSa 26750s70

6. 3725518 0 0 607994 3,l7524 18876t6 3ll4l2 408221 1790fl)'. lFlT 1817903

ll5Lt96S 0 3l8.ll0 5659{98 75!tt57 5075819 6E1269 1067t 1 3015680 31t645 681 ;8t-t{5

lt 227r0n9 t45581 1605119 2785935 lE5,g5{8 11591453 2112160 I170804 2545819 102t69'5 lltE l 9866l

MTAL NS. ,I1621883 l2$t74,t 54754/l8 514143t7 492t2t576 H50384r3 4,{083I35 1190{br t7416959 2lt6ltf r l!d,l 196t583{49

870862094 427597EE 0 45E7958.{8 9t3621883 29$6972 452314{2 1603174115 lggsr'rga
I

tt055l2t

3r,o3.20to 3lt3-zto9

I

II

SCHEDVLE - E
INVESTMENTS (At cost) -Non Tlade

(Quotcd )
Industria.l Development Bank of lndia.
(2880 Equity Shares ofRs.l0/- each,
Markct Price as on 31.03.09 Rs,130752/-

S.ts.l.Mutual Fund
(50000 units ofRs. l0 each, Market
Price as on 31.03.09 Rs.2735001-

S.B.LMutual Fund
(200 Bonds ofRs.l000 each

Price as on 31.03.10 Rs.200000/-)
Previous Year Rs.200000/-)

(Unquoted)
National Saving Certificates

Kriti Auto & Enginee ng Plastics Pvt.Ltd. ( Wholly owned Subsidiarv)
(3875000 Shares of Rs.t0/- each)

Sahkari Audhyogik Vasahat Limired
(l Share of tu.500/ )

LI
I

i

I

zxrm

234000

500000

200000

scr
(A)

{ro

777Wn

sln

8to0

0

(B)

Total n9w 912600
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Schedules Forming Part of The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account
( Amt in Rs.)

31.03.2010 31.03.2m9

SCHEDULE-F
A. CURR.ENT ASSETS

l. Inventories
a) Raw Materials
b) Finished Goods
c) Stores, Spares & Others

Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured Considered Good)
Over Six months
Others
Less: Provision for bad & doubtful debts

Cash & Bank Balances
Cash in hand
Balance with Scheduled Bank
ln Current Account
In Deposits Account

LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured,Considered Good)
a) Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
b) Sundry Deposits
c) Advance Tax/Tax Deducted at Source( Net of Provision)
d) Cenvat

SCHEDI'LE-G
(A) CURRINT LIABILITIES

t. Sundry Creditors
2. Outstanding Expenses

3. Statutory Liabilities
4. Dealership Deposit
5. Bank O/D

(B) PROVTSTONS

Provision of Income Tax for the year
Proposed dividend
Corporat€ DMdend Tax

2613t3433
32a694623
40275334

630283790

162016443
324545836
51956535

538518814

2476oL28
117a54576

160250
14245454

22514028
190705766

2219065
2trooo729

3,{8804 2758507

88219850 59580283

8A973007 63218794

a6t7tt25l 812738337
Total
Total (A)

Total(B)
Total(A+B)

Total (A)

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

8t96254
t 5708a69

29562557
55971722

149439502
1011150753

1194607t 0

23734502
9053587

49480618
201729417

t014467754

560710330
2t94t1t15
391,1,8,037

8507454
0

63W935

501830392

21559748
28034854
10400879

384873

652210746

21000000
741,J.)528

1264518
29705045

@314942

0
0
0
0

6622t0746
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Schedules Forming Part ofThe Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account
( Amt in Rs.)

ffie-
SCHEDULE.H
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Gross Domestic Sales

Less:Excise duty
Net Domestic sales

Export Sales

|ob Work Receipts

SCHEDWE- I
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

Other Operating Income
Insurance Claim
SuDdry Balance Written Back
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation A/c

Other lncome
Inrerest Received/Receivable
Miscellaneous Income

SCHEDULE-J
TNCREASE / (DECRTASE) IN STOCKS

(Finished Goods and Stock in Process)
Closing Stock
Add : Transfer on account ofdemerger

Kdti Nutrients Limited
IGiii Auto Engineering and Plastic Pdvate Ltd.

Less : Opening Stock

SCHEDULE-K
COST OF MATERIAL

Opening Stock of Ra&' Material
Add: Purchases ( Includes loss on account ofhedge
transaction Rs.6708322 ( previous year loss Rs.53902250 )
Less: Closing Stock
Add : Transfer on account ofdemerger

Kriti Nutrients Limited
Kriti Auto Engineering and Plastic P vate Ltd.

Consumption
Add:Finished Goods Consumed
Add:Packing Material Consumed

SCHEDULE-L
DIRECT MANI]FACTLIRING EXPENSES

Stores and Spares Consumed
Coal Consumed
Porver Charges

)ob Work Charges
Freight & Cartage
Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance Charges
Water Charges
Miscellaneous Manufacturing Expenses

3559803551
169743516

3390060045
58940s189

576A127
3985233361

3978299572
1.57813748

3720485824
t709004050

_1796s412
5447 45s346Total

Sub Total (a)

Sub Total (b)
Total (a+b)

61690485
4460379

Total

184380735
5187104

40141
ao242

4432t84
4552567

9065016
3U197

9389213
13941780

567699
601046

1168745.

5241119

5440s13
6609258

Total

3286945.23

56t 508&1
394845487
324545437
70299650

1620t6443
3435457563
3597474006
26t3L3A33

r89s67839
45n8St6?2

3t46592334
40335997

10567a770
3292ffi71O1

324545836

403599640
3981505078
4385104718

162016443
4223088275

l8l8l I l6

43996632t9

24537712
256396a6
72264696

1294936
22739727

4663M4
2555369
ffi5294

40677609
t99t3u97

26387 419
51524165
86138968

5437191
2574t648

6023t73
3797 t90
69r)029

236t5561
2356t834l



Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Schedules Forming Part of The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account

( Arnt in Rs.)

31.03.2010 31.03.2009

SCHEDULE.M
EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION & BENEFITS
Salaries and Wages

ProYident Fund & ESI

Bonus
Employees Benefits
Gratuity

SCHEDUI,E-N
OTHER EXPENSES
Stationery & Printing
Computer expenses

Rent, Rates and Taxes

Postage, Telegam and Telephones

Auditor's Fees

Conveyance Expenses

Legal & Professional Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

Director's Remuneration
PF on Director Remuneration
bir€ctor's Meeting Fee

Director's Commission
Loss on Sale of Shares

Foreign Currency Transaction Loss

Advertisement & Publicity
Sales Promotion Exlrenses

Brokerage & Commission
Freight Outward
Sales Tax & Ocuoi
Travelling Expenses

a) Directors
b) Others

Export Expenses

Sundry Balances Written off
Bad Debts

SCHEDULE-O
FINANCIAL CIIARGES
Interest on Term Loans
Interest to Banks

Interest to Others
Bank Charges/Commission

a2s76577
5829683
353r5E4
9059971
1212800

Total 102210615

82520,198

5395003

3943627
9a23974
2921749

__-!-s_45A4851

Total

952970
1098928
5746447
2217774

r25000
3623883
791l5l8
2875935
3917904
374400

37000
1250000

0
0

3280814
10140869
15724592
700434&

134J3992

650424
10605654
17262108

736610 .

12ta7256
t721126A2

875116
a624)2

7270903
2670886

125000

5366-369

734/-4Iu
2.196885

3900000

374400
28000

0

200000

418,1262$

69 /'7919

35638i.1
l1:i58.197

10452279t1

98.1884

374866
10650098

98043594
8017

1233645

31,t077459

Total

42fi)0301
61024538

3472540
29650306

136147645

45433522
r0790t192

2893109
314 r 31 l0

187640933



Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

SCHEDTJLE - P

SIGMFICANT ACCOTJNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

l Significant Accounting Pollcies

4,

fi&i\p
j

;
t.2

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statemcnts

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, oII the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting pdnciples generally accepted in India ('lndian GAAP') and comply with
the Accounting Standa(ds issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'), The Companies
Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 and relevant provisions of Companies Act, 1956 ("the Act") to the extent applicable.

UBe of Estim&t€s

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the

disclosure of contingent liabiliries on the date of the financial statemenls. Actual rcsults could differ from those

estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and futute periods.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed ass€ts are stated at acquisition cost less accumulat€d depreciation. The cost offixed asseis comprises its Purchase
price including import duties aDd other non-refundabl€ taxes or l€vies and any diectly, attributable cost of bringing the

asset to the working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method ('SLM') as per the depreciation lates prescribed in Schedule XW
of the Act.

Capital Work-In-Pro8ress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready to ure at the balance sheet date and

advances paid to acquir€ capital assets before the balance sheet date.

Impoirmert of Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset o! a group of assets (cash

generating unit) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount ofthe
asset or a group ofassets. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which *re asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying aDount is reduced to its recoverable amounL

The reduction is lreated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the profit & loss account. Ifat the balance sbeet date

there is an indication that a previously assessed irnpairment loss oo longer exits, the recoverable amount is reassessed

and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subiect to a maximum ofdepreciable historical cost.

lnvestm€nts

Investments classified as long term investment are carded at cost. Provision for diminution, ifany, is made to recognize

a decline otler than temporary, in the value ofthe investrnent.

Inventorie6

l. Stores and Spares parts, etq At estimated Cost.

2. Raw matcrialsr At cost, (oet of excise duty) with moving av€rage plice on FIFO basis.

3. Finished Goods: At estimated cost or net realizable value (whichever is lower)

4. By Productr! At net realizable value.

Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventoies to their
present location and condition.

Rsvenue rccognition

(a) Revenue from sale of products is recognized on transfer of all significalt risk and rewards of ownership of
products to the customers, which is generally on dispatch ofgoods. Sales are stated exclusive ofValue Added Tal

(b) Dividencl income is recognized when l}Ie right to receive the dividend is established.

(c) Interest incoDe is recognized on the time proportion basis.

t.5

1.6
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there is no(d) Export incentives receivable are accrued for when the right to receivc the credit is cstablished and

significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate coUection of export proceeds.

1.8 Employee Benefrts

(a) Short Term Employee Bencffts

All employee benelits payabte who\ within twelve months of rendeling the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as sa-laries, la/age5, and short term compensated absences, etc. are rccognized in
the period in which the employee renders the related servlces.

(b) Post- Employment B€nefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans: The Employe€ State Insurance Scheme and Contdbutoly Provident Fund
admlnistered by Proddent Fund Commissionar are defined contribution plans. The Company's cofltribution
paid/payable under the schemes is recognized as expense in the profit and loss account during the period in which
the employee renders the relat€d service.

(ii) Deffned Bel€fft Plans: The Company has taken Gtoup Gfetulty and Cash Accumulation Policy issued by the Life
lnsuance Corporation of lndia (LIC). The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plens is
determined based on actuarial valuation as advised by LIC, using the Projected Unit Credit method, which
recogniz€s each period of service as giving rise to additional udt of employec benefit entidement and measures

each unit sepantely to build up the linal obligation.

The obligation is tneasured at the present ralue of the ertlmated futurc cash flows, The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefft plans, are as advised by LIC.

Actuarial gains ard losses are recognized irnmediately in the Proftt & Loss Account.

1.9 Foreign Currency Tlansactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are rccorded at the 6xch$gc r.te prevsiling on th€ date of transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions setded during the year are recognized in the profit and
loss account ofthe I'ear.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign curency, which are outstandlng lr at thc year-end, are translated Et the closing
exchange rate and t}le resultant exchange differences are recognized in the prcfit and loss account,

Realized gain or loss on cancellation of forward exchange contract i! recognized in the Prolit and Los Account for the

Year.

l IO Borrowirg Costs

The borowinS costs that are direcdy attributable to the acquisition, construction or productions of a qualifuing asset

are capitalized as part ofthe co$ ofthat asset. The amount ofborowing cost eligible for capitalizarion is determined in
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 16- Borrowing Coltr trued b), the Institute of Charter€d Accountants of
India (ICAI) and notified under the Companles Accounting Standard Rules 2006.

l.l I T.rqtion

Tax expenses for the current year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the amount of tax Payabl€
on the taxable income for the year as det€rmined in accotdance with the provisions oflncome T:tx Act 1961. Def€rred
tax is recognized, on tirning differences between the taxable income and accounting income dtat originate in one Period
and are capable of revcrsal in one or more subsequent pedods.

l l2 Erntng Per Shar€

Basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the n€t profit aftributable to equity shareholders for
the year, by the weighted average number of equitt' shares outstanding during the year. Reduction of CaPital is due to
implem€ntation of Demerger schemc.

l l3 ProvisloDc for contingcncies

Provisions comprise liabilities of uncenain tining or amount. Provisions are recognized when th€ comPany recognizes
it has a present obligation as a result ofpast events, it is more likely than not that an oudlow of resources Yrill b€ required
to s€$le the obligation and thc amount can b€ reasonably estimatcd.
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Disclosur€s for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligadon or a Ptesent obliSation that may, but
probably $dll not, requle an outflow of resources when there is a possible obligation or a Present obligation in resPect

ofwhich the likelihood ofoutflow of resources is remote, no Provision or disclosure is made.

Loss contingencies atising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc, are recorded when it is probable that

a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial stat€ments

2.1 pursuant to th€ order of the Hon'ble High Coun of M.P. Bench at Indore solvent dMsion of the Company was

demerged with Kriti Nutdents Limited (KNL) and engineedng moulding division of the comPany was hived-off with

Kriti Auto & Engineering Plastics Pdvate Limited (KA!PPL) w.e,f.lst Ianuary 2010, Thus, the financial statements for

the year are inclusive ofnine months results (31.12.09) of solvent and engineering moulding division.

2.2 Documentation for Bank facitities I'ith various banks are pending for execution due to demerger Scheme implemented

during the year.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, the Curent Assets, Loans and Advalces have a value realizable

in the ordinary course ofbuslness at least equal to the amount at which they are stated and provisions for dl known liabilities

are adequate and not in excess ofthe amount reasonably necessary

Cotrtingcnt li.blllties

4.1 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account Rs. 23.30 lacs (Previous Year

Rs.l8l.43Lacs)

4.2 Bank has given guarantee on behalf of the Company to various palties to the extent of Rs.64.58 lacs (Previous Year

Rs.333.54lacs.)

Installments of term loans from financial institutions falling due within one yeat are Rs 4l4.60.lacs (Prwious year

Rs.744.45lacs).

Compan/s lncome tax assessments have been completed up to Assessment year 2007-2008. ID the oPinioo of Board of
Dtector's provision made for Income Tax is adequate

7. Computrtion ofNet Prcfit under Section f98 (l)/349 ofthe Companies Act-1956.

(Rs. in Lacs)

1231.75

0.37

42.92

1275.04

t2.75

12.50

8. Remutr€r.tlon PairVPayable to Maiaging Director / Director

Prid / Payable ( {r. In Lao) Current Year Prevlous year

Remuneration 42.92 42.74

Commissiofi ,. t2.50 0.00

Micro, Smdt and Mcdtum Entcrprises Dcv€lopmcnt Act, 2fi),5:

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2005 which caDe into force ftom 2nd October 2006,

certain disciosures are required to be made relatLng to Micro, Small and Medium Ent€rPrirs. The ComPany is in the process

of compiling relative infotmation from it's suppliers about their coverage under the said act since the relevant information is
not readlly availabl€; no disclosures have been made in the accounts. However the Management is ofthe view that, the impact

of iriterdst, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions ofthis act is not exPected to be material.

The amount ofForeign Exchange gain included in the profit & loss account is Rs.44.32 lacs (Previous Year loss Rs.4l8.42lacs).

The disclosure required as per Accounting Standard (AS) 15 "Employees Benefit' issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants oflndia (ICAI) and notified under the Compani€s Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 and based on the rePort

generated.by Lift lnsurdnce Colporation of India (LIC) is as under

a

I

i

Net Profit before Tax as per Profit & Loss A/c

Add: Director Sifting Fees

Add: Director s Remun€iation

Net Profit for the calculation of Commission

Commission payablc upto l% ofthe net profit

R€stricted

10.

11.

!
I

i
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(b)

(a) The company has taken Group Gratuity and Cash Accumulation Policy issued by the LIC, which is a
plan.

Table showing changes in present value of obligations as on

Present lue of obligations as at beginning of the year

Less: Transfer pursuant to scheme of arrangement

Balance Present value ofobligations as at beginning ofthe year

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Benefit Paid

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations

Present value of obligations as at end of the year

Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on
Fair value of plan assets 4t beginning of the year

Less: Transfer pursuant to scheme of arrangement
Balaace Present value of obligations as at beginning of the year

Expected return on plar assets

Contribution
Benefit Paid
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year

Table showtng fatr valud of plan assetr as on

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year

Less: Transfer pursuant to scheme of arangement

Balance Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year

Actual return on plan assets

Contribution

Benefit Paid

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year

Funded status

Excess of actual over estimated leturn on plan assets

(Actual Rate of return= estimated rate of retun as ARD falls on 31103/2010)

Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized as on

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year-obligation

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year-plan assets

Total (Gain)/Loss for the ,vear

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the year

E{renses recognized in statement of profft {nd loss

Curent Service Cost

Interest cost

Expected retuln on Plan Asset

Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the year

Expenses recognized in the staternent of profit & loss

Aeeumption

Discount rate

Salary Escalation

3vo3t20to
t42476

NIL
(t42476)

(142476)

3vo3l20ro
645499

163880

(245906\

(142476)

420997

3vo3l20to
485401.8

280s521

2048497

163880

645499

(272993\

(142476)

2442407

3u03t20to
5841948
3039819
2802r29

245906
634436

(272993)

NIL
3409478

3 03l20tO

584r948

3039819

2802129

245906

634436

(272993)

3409478

96707 t
NIL

3 0312009

2528895

NIL

2528895

2023tt
646451

(819366)

2295727

4854018

3u03t2009
2409648

NIL
2409648

222740

4028926
(8r9366)

NIL
5841948

3u0312009

2409648

NIL

2409648

222740

4028926

(819366)

5841948

987930

NIL

3u0312009

(2295727)

NIL

2295727

7741i)J

3UO3t2009

64545t

202311

(222740)

2295727

292t749

I

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

G)
8%

5Vo

8%

7%
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12, SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE TXAR ENDED 3lst MARCH, 2OIO.

(Rs in Lacs)

/N

DTVISION
Upto 31.12.2009

DIVISION DIVI$OX
Upto 31.12,2(X)9 Upto 3l.032OlO

KIn

SEGMENT REVENUE
Export Turnover
Domestic Tunover
Less: Excise Duty
Segment Revenue (Net)

5894.05

12479.72

6.44
18367.33

0.00

t072.72
84.74

987.98

o-m
22rc3.A
16()6.5

2Wn-B

5894.05

356ss.72

1697.43
f94s2.33 Tb.l

SeN
R.E'SULT

PROFIT BEFORI INTERTST,
DEPRECIATION & TAXATION
Less: Depreciation & Amortisation
PROFIT AFTER DEPRECIATION
Less: Interest Expense

Less: Provision for Tax
Less: Deferred tax
PROFIT

6t9,42
145.86

473.56
513.99

0.00

64.53
(r04.e6)

97.28
31.l8
65.10
23.90

0.00

15.09

27.1O

2?l7y
26f-79

2!53-t
EZl5r
210.@
lt.4

!n7t

n34.06
,140.83

?5D3.2t
1361.47

210.00

110.82

910.93

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets as on 31.03.2010

Segment Liabilities as on 31.03.2010

Capital Expenditure during 2009-2010

0.00

0.00

78t.77

0.00

0.00
117.73

LE'4I17
rq"5.to

3a3.57

t294jj.47
10055.10
t2a3.t7

Note: a) There are no non-cash expenses, other than depreciation and amoltization in respect ofscgllE atsals
b) There are no inter segment rales.
c) The segment assets are situated in India.

13. The amount ofborrowing cost capitalized during the year NIL (Previous Year Rs 26.75lacs).

14. EARNING PER SITARE

The Company's share capital consists of equity share. The basic and diluted earning per share is calcrrltd r rm&r:
St No Nature of Transactlon Currrd Yc- h,erkns Year

l.

L

a

-

'Tt

l6-

Number of Shares at the Commencement UP TO 31.12.2009 52(xx{rt 62004400

Shares issued during the year pursuant to the scheme of arrangement
approved by the Hon able high court of M.P in Jan-2010 496035211 NIL

Weighted average No. of Shares for the Year 589041tt 6200,1400

Profit contribution for Basic EPS (Rs in lacs) (260.92\

,

{

Extra Ordinary Items (Within the meaning of AS-5, Net Profit or loss for the period,
Pdor Period items and Changes in the Accounting Policies) NIL
Basic Earning Per Share (0.42)

7. Diluted Earning Per Share 155 (0.42)
t7.Nominal Value Per Share 1.00

In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) 18 "Related Patty Disclosures" issued by Thc htu of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) and notified under the Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2fib tt Drc of the related
parties and the rele!?nt disclosure is as under:-
(a) Name ofthe related p.rty and description ofrelationship:

i. Key Management Personnelr
Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, Managing Director
Smt. Purnima Mehta, Executive Director

ii. Rel&tives ofK€y Managerial Personnel
Shri Saiian Singh Mehta (Father of Managing Director)
Miss Devki Mehta (daughter of Managing Director/ Executive Director)
Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta (son of Managing Ditectot/ Executive Director)
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iii Subsidiary Company
Iciti Auto & Engineedng Plastics Plt. Ltd. (Wholly owned Subsidiary Company)

iv. Companies/entities under the control of K€y Managemcnt personnel
l) M/s. Chetak Builders Prt. Ltd.
2) M/s. Kriti Corporate Services Plt. Ltd.
3) M/s. Shipra pipes h.t. Ltd.
4) M/s. Sakam Trading pvt. Ltd.
5) M/s. Kriti Nutrients Ltd.

The following transaction were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course ofbusiness

(Rs. In lacs)

Sr,No. Natur€ of
Tldnsecdon

Subsidiary Key Relatiws ComPanies/entities
Management ofKey utrder the control
Personnel Management ofKeY

Personnel Mrnagem€nt
Pereonnel

1. DEPB License NIL NIL NIL 58.54

purchased (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)

2. Remuneration NIL 55.42 8.77 NIL
(NIL) (42.74) (2.80) (NIL)

3. Rent NIL NIL 2.ll NIL

(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) i

5. Unsecur€d Loan 1.25 NIL NIL 368.04

Given
Taken (NIL) (NIL) (NlL) NIL) i

6. Interest (Neo 0.20 NIL NIL 20.60 t
(NrL) (NrL) (NlL) (NlL) i

'The figures mentioned in the brackets are previous year figures.

16. In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) 22 "Accounting for Taxation" issued by The Institute of Chadered

Accountants of India (ICAI) and notified under the Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2005 the details of Deferred Tax

items are as under:

2fiXt-lo 200&09

Defered Tax Liabifities:

On Account of Tax effect on timing difference

arising due to difference in Depreciation 110,82 lacs Nil

17. Pursuant to the order of the Hon'ble High Court of M.P Bench at Indore solvent division of the Company was demerged

with Kdti Nutrients Limited (KNL) and engineering moulding dMsion of the cornpany was hived-off with Kriti Auto &
Engineering Plastics Pivate Limited (KAEPPL) w.e.f.tst fanuary 2010, Thus, the financial statements for the year are

inclusive ofnine months results (31.12.09) ofsolvent and engineering moulding division.

a) Segments are:

Plastics
Solvent
Moulding

b) The Company has completed the Scheme ofArangement on lst January 2010.

c) The amount of total assets and liabilities as of balance sheet date and amount of revenue and expenses in respect of
continuing operation (Plastics Division) and discontinuing operations (Solvent Division & engineering moulding

division) are as under:
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I

I

l

In lecs

Particular/Year Continuing Operation Discontinuing Opemtion

Plastic Division Solvent Division Eosir€crh: Moolditg Div.

As on
3 03l20tO

As on
3vo3t2009

As on
3 1212009

As on
3 03t2009

As otr
3 l2l20i',)

As on
3uo3t2.ffi9

Loans
Deffered Tax Liabfity
ASSETS
Fix€d Assets
Net Block (Including CWIP)
Investments
Currents Assets, Loans & Advances
lnvelrtodes
Accounts Receivables
Cash & Bank Balances

Loans & Advances
Less:- Currents Liabilities & Provisions

3451.95
454.42

2023.81

423.23

4103.72
342.68

3478.21
278.t5

,()0.08

96-86
380.36
8t.77

2828.96
779.05

6302.84
1424.54

889.73

r494.40

2843.71
2.05

3597.58
916.66

1241.02

2918.73
7.38

268t.02
623.2\
I I l.l5
682.25

2689.22
7.38

1702.34
847.59

78.59
1624.32

779.99
0.m

132.E3

509-37

l0-58
106.66

693.44
0.00

8s.27

345.75
20.38
44.34

6603.15 4122.22 1828.80 2343.57 13, .05 to56.7l
Net Curients Aqsets 3508.35 2166.26 226a.85 1913.28 (58r.5r) (5s6.97

Particular/Year

Gross Turnover
Less:- Excise Duty
Net Twnover
Other Income
Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks
Totrl Income
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Material
Manufacflting Expenses

Employees Remuneration & Benefits
Other Expenses

Profit Before Dcpreciation & Interest
Depreciation
Profrt Before I erest & Tax
Financial Charges

Profrt Before Tax
Incom€ Tax Expenses

Current Tax
Fringe Benefit Tax
Deferred Tax
Prolit After Tar

Discontinuhg Opentiol
Solvent Division

As on
,1n312009

846.46
79.08

0.24
t4.31

Div.

4l

381.46
t6r.29
100.59
61.75

35.03

64.94

0.00
1.65
0.00

21955.06
2321.63

109.83
to47.9l

233.28

t499.72
totT.45

145.86
473.57
514.00
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l8 Additiond information as required under Pa II of Scbedule Vl to the CoDparies Act,l956 is as utrder
(Figures of solvent division and engineering moulding division giv€n upto 3l/1212009, since after that dat€'.hese division
have been demerged/hived off under scheme of arangement)

PARTICT'IAR

A INSTAILED CAPACITY
(As cettified by the Management)

SOIVENT PLANT
RTFINARY
PVC/HDPE PIPES/DUCT
PVC FITTINGS
ENGINEERING PLASTIC PRODUCTS

B PRODUCTTON
SOYA MEAL
SOYA CRUDE OIL
REFINED OIL
PVC/HDPE PIPES/DUCT
PVC /HDPE FITTING
ENGINEENNG PLASTIC FRODUCTS

311o312010

Qty Valuc
M.T Rs. In Lcs

ttl03/2009
Qty Value
M.T Rs. In lacs

I CAPACITY

360000
42000
63600

1800

3600

23674
5588*
20627

30580*
t764**

360000
36000
61000

1400

3500

81935

1.9187-

25962
27451

1526

* Includes 5587.75 M.T (Previo.ri year 18308.853 M.T. ) issued for caPtive consDrnPtjon (SOYA OIL)

** Including iob work receipt 53.00 M.T.

2 TURNOWR
A PRODUCT

SOYA MEAL
SOYA CRUDE OIL
RIFINED OIL
PVC/HDPE PIPES/DUCT
PVC /HDPE FITTING
ENGINEERING PLASTIC PRODUCTS
OTHERS

3 OPENING STOCK
SOYA MEAL
SOYA CRUDE OIL
REFINED OIL
PVC/HDPE PIPES/DUCT
PVC /HDPE FITTING
ENGINEERING PLASTIC PRODUCTS
OTHERS

256t3
0

20432
29930
l9l8

6651.64
0

10803.6

18526.29

t817.73
1072.72..

980.35.
39a52.33

a4s6r 15897.85

818 336.27

26t56 15377.0t
28684 20283.41
1485 1540.31

846.45.'
1381.32*

s662.6!

5787 984-12
265 136.05

295 166.1

4992 3248.44

322 300.47

t3.2t
345.53

5193.92

*includes sale ofseed sold 505.25M.T. Rs,l07.9l lacs (Previous year NIL)

** Including job work receipt Rs57.68 lacs (Previous year Rs. 179.65 lacs)

3t62
42

336
3750

352

722.05
16.89

163.78

15t2.8
32A.9

373.51

3A5.45

35



I

Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

CLOSING STOCK OF FINISHED GOODS
SOYA MEAI
SOYA CRUDE OIL
REFINED OIL
PVC/HDPE PIPES/DUCT
PVC /HDPE FITTING
ENGINEERING PLASTIC PRODUCTS
OTHERS

RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED
SOYA BEAN SEEDS

SOYA CRUDE OIL PURCHSED
PLASTIC POLYMERS
OTHER

VALUE OF IMPORTED MATERIAL CONSUMED
AND PERCENTAGE TO THE TOTAL CONST'MPTION
I IMPORTED
II INDIGENOUS

CIF VALUE OF IMPORT
RAWMATERTAL
CAPITAI GOODS

EARNING IN FOREIGN CI,'RRENCY
FOB/FOR BASIS( EXPORT OF GOODS)

EX}ENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURR.ENCY
INTEREST
OTHERS

0

0

0
,Ur0

208

325t0
16005
28288

0
0
0

2744,38

20t.07
0

341.50

3286.95

762t.13
6666.53

t4594.57
2583.69

11465.92

3162 722.05

42 16.89

336 163.78

3760 t6t2.8
362 328.9

27.52

1735l

I

75803

Value

tt712.o4
19753.88

311,6.5.92

tr7t2.04
0.00

tt7t2,o4

5563.65

2t.36
5.50

t47497

Value

37.22 Zl22.t2
62.78 41294.75

t00.00 43416.87

2067.63

54.49

2t22,t2

12596.45

3.80

4t.97

108453 23397.45

9528 ,1616.08

29516 r4119.57

_ 1283.77

Sajjan Sinth Mehta
(Director)

19. Previous figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary, however due to the effect ofscheme ofarrangement

the current year, previous ffgures are not comparable.

For Subhash Deshpaade & Co.
Chartered Accountants

R.D. Asawa
(Partner)
M.No. 16562

Place: Indore
Date : l9th May, 2010

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

shiv singh Mcht
(Managing Dircetor)
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Infomation requir€d as per part ry of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1 955-

BATANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE.

i*e>,

I

l. RegistrationDetails

Registration No.

Balance Sheet Date

2. Capital Raised Duriag the year

3. Position of Mobitsation and Deployment of Funds

Sources of Fund

Item code No

(ITC Code)

Applications of Funds

4. Performance of Company

5. Generic Name6 ofThr€e Capital Products/Services ofCompany. (As per monetary terms)

L2520 6MP I990PLCOO 57 32

31.03.2010

Public Issue

NIL

Bonus Issue

NIL

Total Liabilities

71t636137

Paid-up Capital

49603520

Secured Loans

308515213

Net Fixed Assets

2Ar659631

Net Current Assets

350835771

Capital work in Progress

1236135

Turnover

4154976877

Profit/Loss Before Tax

r23t75076

Eaming Per Share ln Rs.

1.55

3917

PVC Pipes & Fittings

State Code 10

Right Issue

NIL

Private Placement
Nll.

Total Assets

711636137

Total ReserYes

271395459

Deferred Tax Liability

45442087

lnYestments

77904600

Misc. Expenditure

Total Expenditue

3902216580

Profit/Loss After Tax

91093070

Dividend Rate %

t5%
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

I

l.

3.

Auditors' Report to the Board of Directors of Kriti Industries (India) Ltd,
on the Consolidated Financial Statement of

Kriti Industries (India) Ltd and its Subsidiary

We have audited the aftached consolidated balance sheet of Kriti Industries (India) Ltd (the company)and Kriti Auto &
Engineering Plastics P!1. Ltd. (its subsidiary) as at 3lst March 2010, the consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year
ended on t}lat date ann€xed thereto, which we have signed under reference to this report . These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of Kriti Industries (India) Linited's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on th€se consolidated financial statement based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance witi the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about wheth€r the financial statements are prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with an identified financial reporting framework and are free of material misstat€ment. An
audit indudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signficant estimated made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall ffnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a leasonable basis for our opinion.

We have audited the financial statement of Kriti Auto & Engineering Plastics P\t. Ltd, a subsidiary whose financial statement
reflect total assets of Rs.1221965521- as at 3lst March 2010 and total revenues ofRs.49550735/- for the year ended on that date.

We report that the consolidated financial statement have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements
of Accounting Standard 2 I , Consolidated Financial Statement, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
on the basis of the separate audited financial statement of Kriti Industries (India) Ltd and its subsidiary included in the
consolidated financial statement.

On the basis of the information and explanation given to us ard on consideration of the separate audit report on individual
audited financial statement of Kriti lndustries (India) Ltd and its aforesaid subsidiary, in our opinion, the consolidated
financial statement togethe! with the notes thereon and attached thereto give a true and fair view in cotfotmity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) In the case of consolidated balance sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of Kriti Indust es (lndia) Ltd and its
subsidiary as at 3lst March 2010.

(b) In case ofthe consolidated Profit and Loss Account, ofthe consolidated Result ofoperation of lciti Industries (India)

Ltd and its subsidiary for the year ended on that date.

For Subhash Deshparde & Co.
Chartered Accountants

( FRN-000476c)

Place : Indore
Date : l9th May 2010 (R.D. Asawa)

Partner
M.No.16562
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Kriti lndustries (India) Ltd.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3I" MARCH,2OTO

( Amt in Rs.)

PARTICTJLARS SCHEDULE 31.03.2010 31.03.2009

II
Il.

SOURCES OF FUNDS
l. Sharc Hold€rs' Fund

(a) Shar€ Capital
(b) Reserves & Surplus

2, Loan Funds
(a) Secued Loans
(b) Unsecured Loans

3. Deferrcd Tax Liability/Asset8 ( Net)

APPUCATION OF FUNDS

l Fixed Arsets
(a) Cross Biock
(b) Less: Depreciation
(c) Net Block
(d) Add: Capnal Work in Progress

2. Irvestment ( At Cost)
3. Currcnt A6s€ts, Loans & Adwnces
(a) Inventories
(b) Sundry Debtors
(c) Cash & Bank Balances
(d) Loans & Advances

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions

(a) Currcnt Liabilities
(b) Provisions

Net Cu$ent Assets (F-G)

Accounting Policies & Notes or
Accounts

As per our report of even date attached.
For Subbaeh Dedtpande & Co.
Chartered Accountants

R.D, Asawa
(Partner)
M.No. 16562

Place : Indore
Date : l9d May, 2010

for and on behalfofthe Board of Directors

A

C
c-l

Total

D

c

49603520
274595974

349181945
368M513

53054106

__7$244058

59825542t
21172A572
t56.5260'44

367762940

3045100

ffio6206
203614t38
90390825

157732195
tw6543364

6714t5840
29955045

701370886
39ir72478
763UOO58

0
0

0

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

Saiian Singh Mehta
(Director)

Total

Shiv Singh Mehta
(Managing Dircetor)
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3T" MARCH, 20

( Amt in RE.)

N
l0

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE 31.03.2010 31.03.2009

II.TCOME,

Income ftom Operalions (Gross)

Less i Excise Duty
Income from Operations (Net)
Miscellaneous Income
Increase/ (Decrease) in Stock

EXPENDITURE
Cost of Materia.l
Manufacturing Exp€nses

Employees Rcmuneration & Benefits
Other Expenses

Financial Charges

Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation
Less : Deprcciation for the year
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax
( Refer Note No.l3 of Schedule P )
Profit/ (Loss) from continuitrg op€ratlons bcfore tax

Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Profrt/ (Lor€) ftom continuing op€rstions aftcr tar (A)
Profft/ (Loss) from Discoltinuing operation8 of
Solv€nt division b€forc tax
( Refer Note No.l3 ofSchedule P )
Deferred Tax
Profft/ (Loss) from Discontinui.ng opcrations of
Solvent division after tar (B)
Net Profft after Tax ( A+B)
Add ; Previous Year Profit Brougbt forward
Profit available for .ppropri.tion
Proposed Dividend
Corporate Dividend Tax
Transferred to General Reserve

Transfered to Contingency Reserve

Balaqcr carried over to Bal.nce Sheet

Earning Per Sharcs (Face Value of Rs l/- each)
Basic & Diluted

As per our report of even date attached.
For Subhash Deshpande & Co.
Chart€red Accountants

R.D. As.wa
(Partner)

M.No. 16562

Place r lndore
Date : 19s May, 2010

1.60

for and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

H
I
I

Total

4209880,600

174342ffi
4/)35s37934

t403&70

4 $3552s

0

0

0

K
L

M
N
o

Total

D

Shiv Singh Mehta
(Managing Dilcetor)

3t23194253
205945089
r06M5349
176t90954
t17359364

3948735019

0
0

0
0

r 70300506
457019ta

124598568

128641249

2r25UnO
25541167

r04836782

(404268r)

64512t4

( r0!1959r5)
94340867
68844934

163185801----iM
t26/15ta

7A27t7at
35000fl)

7270a974
163185801

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Sajjan Singh Mehta
(Director)
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Profft & Loss

_K
Account

( Amt tur Rs.)

31.03.2010 31.03.2009SCHEDULEPARTICULARS

t
;

3

I
SCHEDULE -A
SIIARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED
(80000000 Equity Shdes ofRs 1/- each and
2000000 Optional Convertible Preference Shares of
Rs l0/- each. Total ofRs.100000000/)

TSSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
(49603520 Equity Shares of Rs l/- each fully paid up allotted on
27.01.2010 in lieu of existing 6200,1400 equity shares ofRs.I/- each

pursuant to the Schene of Arrangement approved by the Hon'ble
High Court of M.P)

SCHEDULE-B
R.ESERVES & SURPLUS

General Reserye
Opening Balance

Less r Appropdation on account of demerger scheme

Add: Transfer from P&L
Closing Balance

Contbgcncy Reserve
Opening Balance

Add: Transfer from P&L
Closing Balance

Share Premium Account

Capitd Reserve
(Share Forefeiture Account)

Pmfit & Loss Ac{ouut

lfixxxxxn 100000000

49503520 0

496035m 0

Total

l3fixxx)o0
5A27nal
717282t9
7AZ717at

150co0000

1500000
35q)000
sfixx)oo

46614000

273000

72708974
2?4595971

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the consolidated Balance sheet and consolidated profft & Loss

*6€
Account

( Amt in Rs.)

31.03.2010 31.03.20@

SCHEDULE-C
SECT'RED LOAN

A. LONG TERM LOAN
(Secured by First Charge/Mortgage created/to be created
on Fixed Assets of the Company and
Personal Guarantee of Directors.)

B. WORKING CAPITAI LOAN
(Secured by hypothecation of
Finished Goods, Raw Materiai, Stock
in process,Store and Spares, Sundry
Debtors, Export Bills, Receivables
and Second Charge on Fixed Assets
ofthe Company and Personal Gurantee
ofDirector and his relative)

SCHEDULE-C.i
UNSECT.IRED LOAN
(Inter-Corporate Deposits)

1536,10881

185541064 0

185541061 0
Total 349181945 0

163640881 0

35804513 0

Total 36804513
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Kritl Industries (India) Ltd.

Schedule Forming Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts

SCHEDULE - D
FIXED ASSETS

( Amt in R6.)

PARTICULARS CROSS BLOCK DEPRECI,TNON NET BIOCK

01.04.09 D.drctlon Trander

Schcme of

AnanBment-

oil Dit

fod Gro6.

slod
0t.0.t.09 &r tlr D.ducliot Tnns[r

P[rsuant !o

Scleme of

,4.nantmenl

oilDk

Told

D.Flriarion

3l.tB.2rl0

L fand 2r36E157 0 0 4ffi284 t7at3 0 0 0 0 0 l7a93ll

7. Goodwil 79n70 8486598 0 79m0 818659r ?97n0 {24330 0 797n0 0 8t85598

3. Factory guildirg 16?364615 17073405 0 8J985134 1001529.!6 43623222 0 23t5\919 2s283050 75I69885

4. Pi nt & l,r.chir.ry 506357208 I )0537688 J551879 319909361 x34t653 210517550 306t0570 21t2517 na378ts I34207858 2292?5793

5. Di.s & Mouldj 7J695448 5&745 0 I510084 161$r29 t0944898 5958605 0 1006167 55897316 2W79'

6. 37255t8 0 t77Vn 3t48378 1887616 ll2l45 0 't92837 1805921 l34l45t

7. Furmtue & Fiftre 11512965 318410 3Ant2 975?143 5675819 7t6j6 306711 252467s 344n7 6192M7

L CoDpul€r 22790t\9 145583 16051l9 2391019 1E939565 11591458 2428t64 1t708ryt 2300545 t0348773 8391291

TSIAL RS. )11521882 l358lX0Z) 54754, 41669flXg 5982l51'4 3.t51t38.13{ 45701916 1l!'006{ E42Vn 23t713579 3I651fl1

( Amt irI
31J32010 3lO3lO09

SCHEDULE . E
II.MSTMENTS (At cost) -Non Tlade

(quoted )
S.B.I.Mutual Fund
(200 Bonds ofRs.1000 each

Price as on 31.03.10 Rs.200000/- )

(Unquoted)
National Saving Certifi cat€s

KAEPPL ( 100% Sub$idiary )
(3875000 Shares ofRs.l0/- each)

Sahkari Audhyogik Vasahat Limited
(l Share ofRs.50o/-)

2fiX)00

4100

100000

500

8100

0

500

Total 304600

44
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Schedule Forming Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts

( Amt in Rs.)
3l-03t010 31.032009

SCHEDULE-F
A. CURRTNT ASSETS

Inv€ntori€s
a) Raw Materials
b) Finished Goods
c) Stores, Spares & Others

Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured Considered Good)
Over Six months
Others
Less: Provision for bad & doubtfirl debts

Cash & Bank Balances
Cash in hand
Balance with Scheduled Bank
In Current Account
In Deposits Account

LOANS AND A.DVANCES
(Unsecured,Considered Good)
a) Advalces recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
b) Sundry Deposits
c) Accrued Interest\Income
d) Advance Tax/Tax Deducted at Source( Net ofProvision)
e) Cenvat

SCHEDULE-G
(A) CURR.ENT LIABILITIES

l. Sundry Creditors
2. Outstanding Expenses

3. Statutory Liabilities
4. Dealership Deposit

(B) PROVTSTONS
Ad nce Tax\TDS (Net of provision)
Proposed dividend
Corporate Dividend Tax

269072675
3323t6874

434t66.57
6448,06206

0

0

Total

Total

Total
Total (A)

Total(B)
Total(A+B)

Total (A)

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

31825172
t7t9492t6

150250
203614r38

0

0

1704569 0

882r9850
90390825

938811159

4461764l
17699555
tlt3236

29562657
&739tO6

157732t95
1096543364

0

0

0

0

0

594137749
23949356
407At2al
8507454

57t4t58l0

0

0

0

21250000
7440528
t2645ta

zvr550K
701370886

0

0

0
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Schedule Forming Part of the consolidated Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts

( Amt in Rs.)

ffi
SCHEDWE.H
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Gross Domestic Sales
Less:Excise duty
Net Domestic sales
Erport Sales

lob Work Receipts

SCHEDULE- I
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

Other Operating Income
Insurance Claim
Sundrv Balance written Back
Foreigh Exchange Fluctuation A/c

Other lncome
Interest Received/Receivable
Miscellaneous Income

SCHEDULE.J
INCREASE / (DECRXASE) IN STOCKS

(Finished Goods and Stock in Process)

Closing Stock
Add : Transfer on account ofdemerger

Kriti Nutdents Limited
Kriti Auto E'Igineering and Plastic Private Ltd.

Less I Opening Stock

SCHEDWE-K
COST OF MATERIAL

Opening Stock of Raw Material
Add: Purchases ( lncludes loss on account ofhedge
transaction Rs.6708322 ( previous year loss Rs.53902250 )
Less: Closing Stock
Add : Transfer on account of demerger
Kriti Nutrients Limited
Kdti Auto Engineering and Plastic Private Ltd.

Consumption
Add:Finished Goods Consumed
Add:Packing Material Consumed

SCHEDULE.L
DIRICT MANUFACTURING EXPENSES

Stores and Spares Consumed
Coal Consumed
Power Charges

|ob Work Charges
Freight & Cartage
Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance Charges
Water Charges
Excise duty on finished goods
Miscellaneous Manufacturing ExPenses

Total

3613a65625
174342ffi

3439522959
589405188

_ffi9786
4035537933

0
0
0
0

0

Sub Total (a)

Sub Total (b)

Total

40141
a0u2

u32tu
4552567

9065016
4144a7

9483503

0
0
0

0
0
0

14036070

61690485
u60379

Total

3323t6873

66150864
39a467737
329006216

6946t521

167203544
3467150627
363435417s
26907267s

189567839
453640514

3175713661
40315997

1o7t44595
3323194253

0

0

0
0
0

0

184380735
5187104

Total

26425524
25639686
74924716

t4s4123
24036477

49614/l5
2s98985
473aat6

33319439
7A45777

205945049

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(.)
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

schedule Forming Part ofthe consolidated Balance sheet and profit & Loss Accounts

( Amt in Rs.)

31.03.2010 31.03.2009

SHEDWE.M
EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION & BENEFITS
Salaries and Wages
Provident Fund & ESI
Bonus
Employees Benefits
Gratuity

SCHEDULE-N
OTHER EXPENSES
Stationery & Printing
Computer expenses
Rent, Rates and Taxes
Postage, Telegram and Telephones
Auditor's Fees

Conveyance Expenses
Legal & Professional Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses
Director's Remuneration
PF on Director Remuneration
Director's Meeting Fee
Director's Commission
Advertisement & Publicity
Sales Promotion Expenses
Brokerage & Commission
Freight Outward
Sales Tax & Octloi
Travelling Expenses

a) Directors - Foreign
b) Others - Domestic

Export Expenses
Sundry Balances Written off
Bad Debts

SCHEDULE-O
FINANCIAL CHARGES
Interest on Term Loans
Interest to Banks
Interest to Others
Bank Charges/Commission

85494223.9t
5940151.70
3630546..64

9752584,U
122784t.49
1060'45 49

0

0

0

0

Total

Total

l13687a
ll0l228
58t65a7
2341143
l3s{n0

3673030
8082923
2889161
39t7904
374400
37000

1250000
329aat4

10143869
15724692
71544497

t425a5A

650424
1o649a32
t7262tOa

75t436
13943580

lT6tgog:64

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total

42721369
61187091

3492110
29658794

137359364

0
0

0

0
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

SCHEDULE . P

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

l. Significant Accounting Policies

1.4

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial stalernents are prepared and presented under t}re historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles geuerally accepted in India ('Indian GAAP') and comply with
the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ('ICAI'), The Companies

Accounting Standard Rules, 2005 and relevant provisions ofCompades Act, 1955 ('the Ac{') to the extent applicable.

Use of Estimates

The preparation offinancial statements in conformity with genenlly accepted accounting pdnciples ("GAAP") requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets ard liabilities and the

disclosur€ of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could ditli:r from those

estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized Prospectively in current aod future pedods.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fi](ed assets comprises its purchase

price including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any direcdy, attributable cost ofbdngingthe
asset to lhe working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method ('SLM') as per the d€preciation rates prescribed in Schedule XIV
of the Act.

Capital Work-In-Progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready to use at the balance sheet date and

advanc€s paid to acquire capital assets before the balance sheet date.

Impairment of AEsets

The Company assesses at each balance she€t date wheth€r there is any indication that an asset or a group ofassets (cash

generating unit) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the r€coverable amount of the

asset or a group ofassets. Ifsuch recoverable amount ofthe asset or the recoverable amount ofthe cash'generating unit
to which the asset belongs is less than its carring amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.

The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the profit & loss account. Ifat the balance sh€et date

there is an indicatiol that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exits, the r€coverable amount is reassessed

and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subiect to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

Investmenas

Investments classified as long term investment are carried at cost. Provision for diminution, ifany, is made to recognize

a decline other than temporary, in the value ofthe investment.

Inventories

l. Stores and Spares parts, etcr At estimaled Cost.

2, Raw materialsr At cost, (Det of excise duty) with moving average price on FIFO basis.

3. Finished Goods: At estimat€d cost or net realizable value (whichever is lower)
4, By Productsr At net realizable value.

Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of convemioD and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
presert location and condition.

ReYenue recognition

Revenue from sale of products is recognized on transfer of all significant risk and rewards of ownership of
products to the customers, which is generally on dispatch ofgoods. Sales are stat€d exclusive ofValue Added Tar
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis.

Export incentives receivable are accrued for when the right to rec€ive the cEdit is established aDd there is no

significant unc€rtainty regarding the ultimate collection ofexport Proceeds.

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Employee Benefits

(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and short term compensated absences, etc. are recognized in
the period in which the employee renders the related services.

(b) Post- Employment Benefits

(i) Defined Contdbution Plans: The Employee State Insurance Scheme and Contributory Provident Fund
administered by Provident Fund Commissioner are defined contribution plans. The Company's contribution

. paid/payable under the schemes is recognized as expense in tlle profit and loss account dudng the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans: The Company has taken croup cratuity and Cash Accumulation Policy issued by the Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is

determined based on actuarial valuation as advised by LIC, using the Proiected Unit Credit method, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures

each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value ofthe obligation under defined benefit plans, are as advised by LIC.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Profit & Loss Account.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at tie exchange rate prevailing on the date of tmDsactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the plofit and
loss account ofthe year.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-end, are translated at the closing
exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the profit and loss account,

Realized gain or loss on cancellation of forward exchange contract is recognized in lhe Profit and Loss Account for the
year.

l.l0 Borrowing Costs

The borrowing ,-'osts that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or productions of a qualilying asset
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. The amount of borrowing cost eligible for capitalization is determined in
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 16- Borrowing Costs issu€d by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) and notified under the Companies Accounting Standard Rules 2006.

l.l I Taxation

Tax expenses for the current year comprises of curent tax and deferred tax. Culent tax is tie amourt of tax payable
on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act 1961. Deferred
tax is recognized, on timing differences between the taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period
and are capable ofreversal in one or more subsequent periods.

l.l2 Earning Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dMding lhe net profit aftributable to equity shareholders for
the year, by the weighted average nurnber of equity shares outstanding during the year. Reduction of Capital is due to
implementation of Demergel scheme.

l.l3 Provisions for contingencies

Provisions comprise liabilities ofuncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognized when the company recognizes
it has a present obligation as a result ofpast events, it is more likely than not that an outflow ofresources will be required
to settle the obligation and ihe amount can be reasonably estimated.
Disclosures for contingent Iiability is made when thele is a poisible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood ofoutflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

1.9
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5.

6.

7.

I
r
3

t

I

_6
probable tlLoss contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessm€nt, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is

a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the Iinancial statements.

2.1 Pursuant to the order of the Hon'ble High Court of M.P, Bench at Indore solvent division ofthe Company I
demerged with Kliti Nutrients Limited (KNL) and engineering moulding diyision of the company was hived-offw
Kriti Auto & EDgineeriDg Plastics Pdvate Umited (KAEPPL) w.e.tlst January 2010. Thus, the financial statements I
the year are inclusive of nine montls results (31,t2.09) of solvent and engineering moulding division.

2.2 Documentation for Bank facilities with various banl<s are pending for execution due to demerger Scheme implement' 
during the year

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, the Curlent Assels, Loans and Advances have a value realizal
in th€ oldinary course ofbusiness at least equal to the amount at which they ale stated and provisions for all known liabiliti
are adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

Cortingent lisbilities

4.1 Estimated amount ofcontracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account Rs.23.30lacs.

4.2 Bank has given guarantee on behalfofthe Company to various parties to the extent ofRs.64.58lacs.

Installrnents ofterm loans from financial institutions falling due within one year are Rs 414.60lacs.

The amount of Foreign Exchange gain included in the profit & loss account is Rs.3l.83lacs.

The disclosure required as per Accounting Standard (AS) 15 "Employees Benefit" issued by the Institute of
Accountarts of India (ICAI) and notifi..j under the Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 and based on the
generated by Life Insurance Corporation oflndia (LIC) is as under

(a) The company has taken croup cratuity and Cash Accumulation Policy issued by the LIC, which is a defined
plan.

(b) Table showing changes in preEetrt vrlue of obligations as on
Present value of obligations as at beginning of the year
Less: Transfer pursuant to scheme of arrangement
Balance Present value ofobligations as at beginning ofthe year
Interest Cost
Curent Service Cost
Benefit Paid
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations
Present value ofobligations as at end ofthe year

(c) Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the yeat
Lessi Transti:r pusuant to scheme of arrangement
Balance Present value of obligations as at beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets

Contribution
Benefit Paid
Actua al gain/(loss) on plan ass€ts

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year

(d) Table showing fair rrlue of plan assets as on
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year
Less: Transfer pursuant to scheme ofarrangement
Balance Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year
Actual return on plan assets

Contribution
Benefit Paid

Fair value ofthe plan assets at the end of the year
Funded status

3t/03t2010
4854018
2915489
2t58465

t72656
7157s9

(272993\
(l2sool)
2648656

3u03l2.0to
3206552

404423
3206552
282304
534436

(272993')

NIL
3850299

3U03l20l0
5841948
2217931

4028U0
282304
634436

(272993\
3850299
1201633

I
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(e)

(f)

(s)

Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets
(Actual Rate of return= estimated rate of retum as ARD falls on 3l/03/2010)

Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized as on
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year-obligation
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year-plan assets

Total (Gain)/Loss for the year
Actuarial(Gain)/Loss recognized for the year

Expenses recognized in statement ofprofit and loss
Current SeNice Co$t
lnterest cost
Expected r€turn on Plan Asset
Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the year
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & loss

Assumption
Discount rate
Salary Escalation

SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3lst MARCH, 2OTO

NIL

3rl03t20to
125001

NIL
( r2s00l)
(l2s00l)

3U03t20rO
715809

172656
(282304)
(l2s00l)

481160

8%

7qo

(Rs in Lacs)

S.No. PARTICULARS SOLVENT
DIVISION

Upto 31,12.2fix)

MOULDING PLASTIC TOTAL

Upto 31.03.2010 Upto 31.03.2010

r SEGMENTRTVENUE

Export Turnover

Domestic Turnover

Less: Excise Duty

Segment Revenue (Net)

5894.05

12479.72

6.44

18367.33

0.00

162t.76

0.00 5894.05

22t03.28 36204.75

130.73 t606.25 1743.43

1491..02 20497.03 40355.38

2317.36 3076.@

263.79 457.02

2os!.57 2619.58

zt2.so

0.00 0.00

31.19 90.08

2 RESULT

PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST,

DEPRECIATION & TAXATION

Less: Depreciation

PROFIT AFTER DEPRICIATION 473.56

Less: Interest Expense

Less: Provision for Tax

Less, Provision for Fringe Benefit tax 0.00

Less: Deferred tax 64-53

619,42

145.86

513.99

0.00

139.82

47.36

92.45

36.02 823.58 1373.59

2.50 210.00

PROFTT (lu.%) s9.58 98A.79 943.41

SegDent Assets as or) 31.03.2010

Segment Liabilities as on 31.03.2010

Capital Expenditure during 2009-2010

0.00 1702.52

0.00 818.40

0.00

(s.65)

117.73

12940.47

10055.10

383.67

t4642.99

t0873.50

1283.17

9.

10.

expenses,

b) There are no inter segment sales.

c) The segment assets are situated in India.

The amount ofborrowing cost capitalized during the year NIL.

EARMNG PER SHARE

amotization in respect segment assets.
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The Company's share capital consists ofeqlity share. The basic and diluted earning per share is calculated as

Sr. No. Nature of Tlansaction Current Year

Number ofShares at the Commencement up to 31.12.2009 62004400

Shares issued during the year pursuant to the scheme of arrangement

approved by the Hon able High Court of M.P in Jan-2010 496d3520

Weighted average no. ofshares for the Year 58904180

Profit contribution for Basic EPS (Rs ir lacs) 943.40
I

I

Extra Ordinary Items (Within the meaning ofAS-5, Net Profit or loss for the period,

Prior Period items and Changes in the Accounting Policies)

Basic Earning P€r Share 1.60

7. Diluted Earning Per Share 1.60

Nominal Value Per Share

11. ln accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) l8 "Related Party Disclosues" issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) and notified under the Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 the names of the related
parties and the relevaDt disclosDre is as under:,
(a) Name ofthc rclat€d party.nd d€scription of relationship:

i, Key Maaagement Petsonnel:
Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, Managing Director
Smt. Purnima Mehta, Executive Director
Relativ€s of Key Manegerial Personnel
Shri Saijan Singh Mehta (Father of Managing Director)
Miss Devki Mehta (daughter of Managing Director/ Executive Director)
Shri Sauabh Singh Mehta (son of Managing Director/ Executive Director)
Subsidiary Company
Kriti Auto & Engineering Plastics ht. Ltd. (Wholly owned Subsidiary Company)
Co.npdi€s/entitics und€r the control of Key Managcment personnel
l) M/s. Chetak Builders P\t. Ltd.
2) M/s. Kriti Coryorate Seryices h/t. Ltd.

3) M/s. Shipra Pipes P!'t. Ltd.
4) M/s. Sakam Trading Pl't. Ltd.

5) M/s. Kriti Nutrients Ltd.
The following transaction were carried out with the related parties in lhe ordinary cours€ ofbusiness

(Rs. In laci)

1.00

I

I

Sr. Transaction KeyManagement Relative$oflGy Companies/entitir r&
No. Personnel Personnel Management Personnel the control of Ke7 xrrter.'cot Personnel

l- DEPB License purchased NIL
2. Remuneration
3. Rent
4. lnvestments
5. Unsecured Loan

55.42

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
8.?7

2.ll
NIL
NIL

58.54

NIL
NIL
NIL
367.87

6. lnterest (Net) NIL NIL 20.60
12. ln accordance witl the AccouDting Standard (AS) 22 "Accounting for Taxation" issued by Tbc lDstitue of Chartered

Accountants oflndia (ICAI) and Dotified trnder the Companies Accounting Standards Rules,2(fr rtc &teib of Deferred Tax

items are as under:
2flXt-10

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
On Account ofTax effect on timing difference
arising due to difterence in Depreciation 90.08lacs

I 3. Pursuant to the order of the Hon'ble High Court of M.P. Bench at Indore solvent division of $c CodFDy was demerged

with Kriti Nutrients Limited (KNL) w.e.f.l st January 2010. Thus, the financial statements for $c ;ear arc i.oclusive of nine
months r€sults (31.12.09) of solvent division.
a) The Company has completed the Scheme ofArrangement on lst lanuary 2010.
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b) The amount of total assets and liabilities as of balance sheet date and amount of revenue and expenses in
continuing operations (Plastics & Moulding) and discontinuing operation (Solvent) are as under:

4e
respect of

( Rs. In lacs)

Particular/Year

LIABILITY
Loans
Deffered Tax Liability
ASSETS
Fired As$et6
Net Block ( Inctuding CWIP)
Investments
Cuffents A6sets, Loans & Advances
Inventories
Accounts Receivables
Cash & Bank Balances
Loans & Advances
Less:- Currents Liabilities & Provisions
Net Cuirents Assets

Continuing Operation
as on

3 03t20t0

3459.79
530.s4

Discontinuing Operation
as on

3ul212009

4103.72
342.6a

3677.53
3.05

6448.06
2036.t4

903.91
t577.25
70t3.71
3951.65

29t8.73
7.38

2681.02
623.2t
IIl.t6
682.25

1828.80
2268.85

Particular/Year Continuing Operation
a$ on

Discontinuing Operation
as on

lo 311t2t2009

Gross Turnover
Less:- Excise Duty
Net Turnover
Other Income
Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks
Total Income
EXPENDITURT
Cost of Material
Manufacturing Expenses
Employees Remuneration & Benefits
Other Expenses
Profit Before Depreciation & Interest
Depreciation
Profit Befot€ Interest & Tax
Financial Charges
Profit Before Tax
Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Fringe Benefit Tax
Deferred Tax

For Subhash Deshpande & Co.
Chartered Accouotants

R,D. Asawa
(Partner)
M.No. 16562

Place : Indore
Date : l9d May, 2010

22626.96
1736.99

21988.05
t12.49

1055.61
23157.16

17485.83
1388.91
773.09

1052.15
2457.18

311.16
2t46.02
859.60

t286.41

212.50
0.00

25.54

t8373.77
6.44

18367.33
27.87

(352.00)
18033.20

15746.11
670.54
287.37
709.75
619.42
145.86
473.56
s13.99
(40.43)

0.00
0.00

64.53
Profit After Tax rc48.37 (104.96)

14. Pulsuant to the scheme ofarrangement, Iciti Auto & Engineering Plastics Private Limited (KAEPPL) became wholly owned
subsidiary of Kriti Industries (India) Limited (KIIL) during the year; hence Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared
for the first time and therefore previous figures are not available.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shiv Singh Mehta
(Managing Dircetor)

Sajjan Siogh Mehta
(Director)

i:

' ..' ;

.,."s,S&@J$ie.rd
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DIRXCTORS.REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your Dircctors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report on the Audited Accounts for the financial period ended on 3I"
March 2010.

r. FINANCIAI R,ESULTS AND OPERATION:

The brief financial results are as under: Cunent Year Previous Yeer

Total lncome
Total Expenditure
Profit/ (Loss) before tax
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax

49560735.00

46483948.00
1457986.00

3282288.00

0.00

25307.00
(25307.00],

(2s307.00)

DIVIDEND:

ln order to strengthen the financial resources of the Company, your Directors do not recomrnend any dividend for the year
under consideration,

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The Conpany has neither invited nor acc€pted any deposit from the public with in the Section 58A ofthe Companies Act,
1956 read with the Companies (Acceptance ofDeposit) Rules, 1975 duling the year.

AUDITORS:

M/s. Subhash Deshpande & Co., Chanered Accountants retires at the conclusion oft}le Annual General Meeling and being
eligible offer themselves for reappointment. The Company has rcceived a letter from M/s. Subhash Deshpande & Co., to the
effect that theil appointment, if made, would be within lhe limits under Section 224(lB) ofthe Compalies Act, 1955. Yours
Directors recommend their appointment as auditors of the Company in ensuing Annual G€neral Meeting.

AUDITOR'S REPORT:

The Auditors Report on the accounts for this accounting period ended on 3lst March 2010 is self-explanatory, therefore does
not require any further explanation.

SCHEM! OF ARRANGEMENT:

The Hon'ble High Court of M.P Bench at Indore has duly approved the scheme ofArrangement w.e.f. 01.01.2010. Pursuaot
to the scheme, the engineering moulding dMsion of the Kriti lndustries (India) Limited is transferred and vested into the
compan)'.

MANAGEMENT:

During the year under review, MIs. Purnima Mehta resigned as a director ofthe company. Mr. Manoi Fadnis yras appointed
as an additional director in the company and he holds the office till the date of ensuing Annual General Meetiog. Your
directors recornmend his re- appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

ALLOTMENT OF SIIARIS

Pu$uant lo the order of Hon'ble High Coud of M,P Bench at Indore, Engineering Moulding division of Kiti lndustries
(India) Limited (KIIL) was hived off into the company w.e,f. 01.01,2010, As per the scheme of Arrangement the company
has issued 3875000 Equity shares of Rs. l0/- each at a premium of Rs. l0/- each to KIIL. The 10000 equity shares held by
the promoters were also ffansferred during the year to KIIL. Thus the company has become a wholly owned subsidiary of
i(IIL.

DIRI,CTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the provision of Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 as amended with respect to Director's
responsibility statement and subject to where so ever otherwise contained in the Audit Report. your Drrectors hereby
conftrm.
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accounting

I

l That in the preparation ofthe annual accounts for the financial year ended on 31" March, 20t0 the applicable

standa.rds had been followed, along with proper explanation relating to material departues;

2. That the Director have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs ofthe ComPany at the

end ofthe financial period ended and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year under review;

3. That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records, in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fiaud and other irregularities;

4. That the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information as requir€d und€r Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rul€s, 1975 are not applicable to the Company as the Company does not have any employee receiving

remuneralion exceeding Rs. 24,00,000.00 per annum or Rs. 2,00,000.00 per month or part th€reof

DISCIOSURE OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCTIANGE

EARNING AND OUTGO.

The information in respect of Conservation of Energy as required U/s 217 (l ) (e) ofthe Companies Act, 1956 read with the
Companies (disclosure ofparticulars in the report ofthe Director) Rules, 1988 is not required to be given.

The Company has no specific Research & Developmelrt department.

There was no foreign exchange earning & outgo in during the year.

ACIG.IOWI,EDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on rccord tleir immense appreciation for the assistance and co-operation extended by the

various statutory authorities, Banks, Sbareholders and Employee of the Company.

For and on Behdf of the Board.

10.

u.

a

I

I

Place : Indore
Date : I8th May 2010.

f)irector Director
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Auditor's Report
To the Members of
Kriti Auto & Engineedng Plastic hrt. Ltd.
l. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Kriti Auto & Engineering Plastic P,,'t. Ltd., as at 3l st March, 2010 and also the

Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow statement ofthe Company for the year ended on that date anDexed thereto. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Compfiy's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted oui audit in accordance witi auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we
plan and perform ttle audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting p nciples used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presenlation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.
Further to our comments in Annexure referred to above, we report lhat:
a) We have obtained aU the information and explanations, which to the best ofour knowledge and beliefwere necessary

for the purposes ofour audit.
In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by ihe Company so far as appears from our
examination of such books.
The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account.
In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and loss Account and Cash Flow StatemeDt dealt with by this leport comply
with the AccouDting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) ofsection 211 ofthe Compaqies Act, 1956.

On the basis ofthe wrinen representations received from the directors as on 3lst March 2010 and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, we report that none ofthe directors is disqualified as on 3lst March, 2010 from being appointed
as a director in terms ofclause (g) ofsub section (l) ofsection 274 of th€ Companies Act, 1956.

In our opinion and to the best ofour information ard according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read
wirh significant accounting policies and other notes thereon, give the information required b), the Companies Act, 1955,

in the rnanner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with th€ accouqting principles generally accepted

in India:
i) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3lst March, 2010.

ii) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended oD that date, and
iii) ir the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date

b)

e)

c)

d)

As required by the Companies (Ar.rditor's Report) Order,2003 as amended by Companies (Auditors Repod) (Amendment)

Order, 2004 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) ofSection 227 ofthe Compani€s Act,
1956 and according to information & explanation given to us on our enquiries and in consideration of the scheme of
arrangement as per note No 2.1 to the notes oD accounts and on the basis of such checks we considered appropriate, we

further state that:
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing firll particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has physically verified certain assets during the year in accordance with a programme of
verification, which in our opinion provides for physical v€rification of the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information ard explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the informatioD and explanations given to us, the company has not made any
disposal of fued assets during the yea.

(ii) (a) As explained to us, inventories were physically verified during the year by the management at r€asonable intervals.
(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical

vedfication of inveDtories followed by the management were reasonable and adequate in relation to th€ size of the
company and the nature ofits busin€ss.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has maintained
proper records ofits inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) Since company has not granted any loans to any company, firm or other pafy specified in section 301 ofCompanies
Act and therefore clauses (a) to (d) are not applicable.
(e) Company has taken unsecured loan from its holding company, amount involved Rs.l.25 lacs maximum

outstanding during the year l6.39lacs.
(O Rate of interest and othe! terms and conditions are nol pdma-facie prejudicial to the interest of the company.
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(g) Payment ofprincipal amount and interest is regular as stipulated.
Iq our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequat€ internal control
system commensumt€ with the size of the Company and the naturc of its business fot the purchase of inventory and
fixed assets and for the sale of goods and selvices. Further the basis of our exatnination of the books and records of the
company and accotding ro the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across nor have been
iqformed ofany continuing failure to correct maior weaknesses in th€ aforesaid internal control system.
(a) In our oPinion and according to the iDformation and explanations given to us, the particulars of contracts or

arrangements referred to in Section 30 I of the Act that need to be entered into the register maintained under that
-Section, have been so enteled.

(b) According to the information and explamtions given to ss, there is no transaction in excess ofRs. 5 lakhs in
resPect ofany party and hence the question of reasonable prices in respect of such tnnsactions regards to thc
prevailing market prices does not arise.

vi) The Cornpany has not accepted any deposits ftom the public witiin the meaning of Sections 58A and 58AA of the Acr
and the rules framed there under and therefor€ clause is not applicable to the company.

vii) In our oPinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with t}le size and the nature ofits
business.

viii) The Company is not r€quired to maintain cost records in terms ofSec 209(l) (d) ofrhe Compalies Act, t956.
ix) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examiDed by us, in our

oPinion, the Company has been genenlly regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities during
the tear,

(b) Accordtngtotbe,retords oJrbe Company, the.re are no disputed dues in respect of Sales'Ian, Entry Tax and lncome
Tax

(x) The Company has no accumulatedlo sses at the end ofthe frnancid year and )t has not incured cash losses during the current

Enancial year, however cornpany has incurred a cash loss of Rs.25302- in the immediately preceeding fLrancial year.

(xi) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanation given by the management, we are of tie opinion
that the company bas not defaulted in the repayment of dues to linancial institutions, banks or debenture holders-

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records Produced before us' the

Company has not given any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other

securities.
(xiii) The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund / nidhi /mutual benefit fund / societies are not aPPlicable to the

Company.
(xiv) In our opinion, the Company is not a dea.ler or trader in shares, securities, debeDtures and other investments.

(xv) Company has not given any guarantees for loans taken by others from banl$ or institutions, and therefore commenting over

terms and conditions does not arise.
(xvi) To the best ofour knowledge and beliefand according to the information and explanations given to us, term loans availed by

the Company were, prima-facie, applied by the Company for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(xvii)AccordiDg to the cash flow statement and other records examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, on

"n 
o.'.r"U b".ir, funds raised on short term basis have prima-facie, not be€n used during the yeir for long t€rm investment

(6.xed assets, etc).
(xviii)The Company has not made preferential allotment ofshares to the pani€s and companies covered under section 301 ofthe

Act.
(xix) The Company has not issued any debentures during the year
(lo<) The Company has not raised aoy money by public issue during the year, and therefore question of end use does not arise.

(mi) To the best of our knowledge and beliefard according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by t}Ie

company was noticed or detected dudng the year.

For Subhash Deshpande & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(FRN-000476c)

lndore
l8th May 2010

(iv)

(v)

Place r

Date :

I
t
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

KRITI AUTO & ENGINEERING PLASTICS PVT. LTD.
(l0o% Subsidiary ofKriti Industries (India) Limit€d)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3lst MARCH' 2010
( Amt in Rs.)

PARTICuLARS SCHEDuLE 31.03.2010 3r.03.2fi19

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Share Capital
Reserves & Surplds

LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans
Unsecured Loan

DEFFERED TAX LIABILITY (NET)

APPLICATION OF FTJNDS
FIXED ASSETS

Gross Block
Less: Depr€ciation
Net Block
Capital Work in Progress

INVESTMENT (AT COST)

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
Inventodes
Accounts Receivables

Cash & Bank Balances

Loans &Ad nces

LESS: CURRINT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
Curent Liabilities
ProYisioN

NET CURRXNT ASSETS
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNTS

Accounting policies & Notes on Accounts
As per our report of even date attached.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Subhash Deshpande & Co.
Chartered Accountaots

R.D. A6awa
(Partner)
M.No. 16562

Place : Indore
Dare I l8d May, 2010

0

14522415
61159583
r4l78r8
a292'693

853926W

40805905
250{00

41055905
44336704

0

129203919

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B

c
c-r

Total

D

G

Total

P

38850000
41950s13

40ffi732
124655

7612019
1292039t9

100000

0

0

0

100000

r058338,15
209ffi31
44467215

0

0

0

0

0

21848
42000
63848

lll33

lll33
527 t5
47285

100000

Shiv Singh Mehta
(Dircetor)

Manoi Fadnis
(Director)
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KRITI AUTO & ENGINEERING PLASTICS PVT. XTD.
(l0o% Subsidi.ry of Kriti Industries (lndi.) Limtted)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3lst MARCH, 2010
( Amt in Rs.)

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE 31.03.20IO 31.03,2009

a

I

I

i

I

INCOME
Income fron Operations (Gross)

Less ; Excise Duty
Income from Operations (N€t)

Miscellaqeous Income
Increase/ (Decrease) in Stock

EXPENDITURE
Cost of Material
Manufactuling Expenses

Employees Remuneration & Benefits
Admbistrative & Selling Expenses

Financial Charges

Profft before Depreciation
L€ss : Depreciation for the year
Profit before Tax
Less : Provision for Taxation
Less : Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax
Add/Less : Deferred Tax Assets/(Deferred Tax Liability)
Net Profit after Tax
Add : Previous Year Profit

brought forward
Profit available for appropriation
Balance carried over to Balance Sbeet

Accounting policies & Notes on Accounts

As per our report ofeven date attached.
For Subhaoh Deshpandc & Co.
Chartered Accouqtants

R.D. Asrwa
(Partner)
M.No. 15552

Place : lndore
Date : l8'n May, 2010

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

K
L

M
N
o

54903723
4599150

50to4373
94290

(838r29)

495&734

30587152
580,6593

3Ar47!4
4/D7s2a0

1211679
,15518438

3042296
15188fi)
r423496
250000

0
2074302
3L47798

&72a5\
3200513
32005r3
32005r3

0

0

0
0
0

24702

25307

(2s307)

(2s307)
0

0

(2s307)

(2r978\
@7285\
(4728s\
147285),

shiv silrgh Mehta
(Dircetor)

Manoi Fadnie
(Director)
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

KRITI AUTO & ENGINEERING PLASTICS PVT. TTD.
(100% Subsidiary of Kriti Indurtries (India) LiDited)

Schedules Forming Part of The Balance Sheet And Profit & Loss Account
( Amt in Rs.)

PARTICIJ'I,ARS SCHEDTJLE 31.03.2010 31.03-2fi)9

SCHEDULE.A
SHARE CAPITAI
AUTHORISED
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares ofRs 10/- €ach

(Previous Year-10,000 Equity Shares ofRs l0/- each)

ISST'ED. ST'BSCRIBED & PAID UP
38,85,000 Equity Shares ofRs 10/- each

(Previous Year-10,000 Equity Shares ofRs l0/- each)

(All the above shares are held by Kriti Industries (India) Limited,

Holding Company)

SCHEDULE.B
RTSERVES & SURPLUS
General Reserve

Contingency Reserve

Share Premium Account
(Excluding Calls in Arrears)
Capital Subsidy
Share Forfieture A\C
Profit & Loss Account
(As per Annexed account)

SCIIEDULE-C
SECURED LOAN
A. LONG TERM LOAN FROM BANKS

(Secured by Fi$t Charge/Mortgage on
Fixed Assets of the Company and

Personal Guarantee of Directors)

B. WORKING CAPITAL LOAN FROM BANKS
(Secured by Hypothecation of
Finished Goods, Raw Material, Stock

in process,Store and Spares, Sundry
Debto$, Export Bills, Receivables

and Second Charge on Fixed Assets

of the Company and Pe$onal Gurantee

of Directors )

SCHEDWE-C-r
TJNSECURED LOAN
(lntercolporate Deposits)

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

100000000 100000

lfixxxnoo 100000

38850000 100000

3885finO 100000

00
o0

3200513 (47285)

41950513 @7285\

25065667

l56tll055

0

0

0

0
0

38750000

s666732

t24655

1245.55
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

KRITI AUTO &ENGINEERING PLASTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(100% Subsidiary of Kriti Industries (India) Limited)

Schedule Forming Part of the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts

SCHEDULE - D
FIXED ASSETS

N.t"-l.Addttt"""'.I.'dt''gcood*lll""p.","nt"assetsaquiredpursuanttotlreschemeofdemerger/hiveoff.
( Amt in R$.)

( Amt tn Rs,)

SN, PA-RTICU]-ARS GROSS BLOCK 

-

DF,PRICIATION

0104.09 Additions

on denerger

Total 01.04.09 Additions

denerger

lor the Sack Tot3l 3r.03.2010 11.03.2009

l. Land 0 5591t22 0 5597r22 0 0 0 0 ss97122 0

L Good{ 1 0 8485598 0 8486598 0 0 424330 0 124330 806226E 0

3 tacloryRtilding 0 21296198 0 2r296198 0 3679976 \77821 0 3a57799 17438399 0

I Plant & tlachner)" 0 65258958 0 65258958 0 13960094 861418 0 l.{821512 n$7M 0

5. Dies & Modds 0 255141.1 0 2551414 936099 r03l% 0 t039495 r51l9l9

0 t0854 0 30854 15184 0 l6l l7 14717

t lurniture & Fi(ur€ 0 ?2ltt85 0 2211786 0 5l1004 35096 0 541fl01 I67I6E5 0

8. Compuler 0 19.{916 0 394916 0 245273 16004 0 26t177 133639 0

MTAL RS. 0 r0583384{i 0 105833846 0 19147830 l618E{X) 20966631 E4A57215 0

Previous Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

31.03.2010 31.03.2009

l0l l3

Total

!

SCHEDULE-F
A. CURRENT ASSETS

l. Invento es

a) Raw Materials
b) Finished Goods WIP
c) Stores & Spares

2, Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured Considered Good)
Over Six months
Others
Doubtful debts

3. Cash & Bank Balances

Cash in hand
Balance with Scheduled Bank

On Current Account
On Deposits Account

Total

Total
Total (A)

7758U2 0

3622250 0

3141323
14522415

7065043 0

5409640 0

61159683

1359765 11735

0
1417818 21848

77099916 21848
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

KRITI AUTO & ENGINEER]NG PLASTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(100% Subsidiary of Kriti Industries (India) Limited)

Schedule Forming Part of the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts
( Amt in Rs.)

31.03.2010 3r.03.2009

B. LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured,Considered Good)
a) Advances recoverable in cash or

in kind or tbr ralue to be received

b) Sundry Deposits
c) Advance Tax/Tax Deducted at Source

d) Cenvat
f) Inter Division

SCHEDULE-G
(A) CURRXNT LIABILITIES

I. Sundry Creditors
2. Outstanding Exp€nses

3. Statutory Liabilities
4. Advance from Customers

5. lnter Division

(B) PROVISIONS
Provision for Income Tax (Earlier Year)

Provision oflncome Ta-x for the Year

Provision of Fringe benefit Ta-r

Less : Advance Income Tax/Tax Deducted at Source

Corporate Dividend Tax
Proposed dividend

SCHEDULE-H
Gross Sales

Less: Excise Duty
Net Sales

Iob Work Receipts

SCHEDULE- I
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME
lnterest Received/Receivable
Miscellaneous Income
Profit on Sale of Assets

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation A/c
Sundry Balance Wrilten Back

SCHEDULE-'
INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN STOCKS
(Finished Goods and Stock in Process)

Closing Stock
Less : Opening Stock

Total(B)
Total(A+B)

Total(A)

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Total

421387

1990685
4767344

_ 1113236
0

a292693
8s392609

37427420
204s241
t333244

0

40805905

0
2s0000

0

250000
0
0

250000
41055905

54062064
4599150

49452914
841659

50304573

42000

0

0

0

42000
63848

r33
0

0
0

0

n t33

0

0

0

0
0

0

0

11133

0

0

Total

0
94290

0

0

- 

94290

0

0

0

0

36222s0 0

460379
(838r29)
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I Xriti Industries (I[dia) Ltd.

KRITI AUTO & ENGINEERING PLASTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(l0o% subsidiary of Kriti Industries (lndia) Iimited)

Schedule Forming Part ofthe Balance Sheet and Prolit & Lo6s Accounts
( Amt in Rs.)

31.03.2010 31.03.2009

SCHEDULE.K
COST OF MATERIAL
Openiqg Stock of Raw Material
Add:Purchases

Less: Ciosing Stock

Add:Finished Goods Purchased

Add:Packing Material Consumed

SCHEDULE.L
DIRICT MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Stores and Spares Consumed
Power Charges

fob Work Charges

Freight & Cartage
Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance Charges

Water Charges

Miscellaneous Manufacturing Expenses

SCHEDULE-M
EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION & BENEFITS
Salaries and Wages

Provident Fund & ESI

Bonus
Employees Benefits/Staff Welfare
Gratuity

SCHEDULE-N
OTHER EXPENSES

A. ADMINISTRATIVE E{?ENSES
Stationery & Printing
Rent, Rates and Taxes

Postage, Telegram and Telephones
Conveyance Expenses
Legal & Professional Charges

Audit Fees Payable

Computer Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

Foreign Currency Fluctuation A/c

5187105
31693064
36880169
7754842

29t213?.6
0

1,165825

30587152

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

a

I

i

Total

Toral

Total

Total (A)

17879t2
266,0020

159188
1296750
297942

43616
73518

437607
6806593

2917647
I10469
98963

69 t4
15041

_ 3834734

1a3907
70500

163569
49147

17t405
l{xno
23M

t3226
0

&405!4

0

0

0

0

0
,0

0

0
1600

87

0

19155

3860
0

0

24702
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

KRITI AUTO & ENGINEERING PLASTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(100% Subsidiary of Kriti Industries (India) Limited)

Schedule Forming Part of the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts
( Amt in R$,)

3r.03.2010 31.03.2009

B. SELLING & DISTR.IBUTION EXPENSES

Advertisement & Publicity
Salcs Promotion ExPenses

Brokerage & Commission
Freight Outward
Sales Tax & Octroi
Bad Debts
Sundry Balances Written off
Travelling Expenses

a) Directors
b) Others

0
44178

Total (B)
Total (A+B)

18m0
3000

0
rs0l033

76865
1756323

14s.26

44178
3414226
&7a2a0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

24702

SCHEDWE-O
FINANCIAL CIIARGES
lnterest on Term Loans

Interest to Banl6
Interest to Others
Bank Charges/Commission

Total

721068
M2553

19570
8488

1211679

0

0

0
605

605
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

SCHEDULE - P

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOI'NTS

l. SignificantAccountingPolicies

1.2

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India ('Indiar GAAP') and comply with
the Accounting Standards issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of hdia ('ICAI'), The Companies

Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 and relevant provisions of Companies Act, 1956 ("the Acl ) to the extent applicablc.

Use of Estimates

The preparation offinancial statements in confbrmity with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the

disclosurc of coDtingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ froD those

estimates. Any revision to accountinf! estimates is recognized Prospectively in current and futurc Periods.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of frxed assets comPrises its purchase

price including import duties and other non-refirndable taxes or levies and any directly, anributable cost ofbringing the

asset to the working condition lbr its intended use.

Depreciation is pr<rvided on the straight line method ('SLM') as per the depreciation rates prescribed in Schedule XTV

ofthe Act.

Capital Work-ln-Progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready to use at the balance sheet date and

advances paid to acquire capital assets before the balance sheet date.

Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indicaiion that an asset or a 8!ouP ofassets (cash

generating unit) rnay be irnpaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount ofthe
asset or a group ofassets. Ifsuch recovenble amount ofthe asset or the recoverable amount ofthe cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.

The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the proiit & loss account. Ifat the balance sheel date

there is an indicatioD that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exits, the recoverable amount is reassessed

.nd the asset is retlected al the recoverable amount subject to a maximum ofdeprcciable historical cost.

Investments

lnvestments classified as long term investment are caried at cost. Provision for diminution, it any, is made to recognize

a decline other tban temporary, in the value of the irvestment.

Inventories

l. Stores and Spares parts, etc At estimated Cost.

2. Rew materials: At cost, (net ofexcise duty) with moving ayerage price on FIFO basis.

3. Finished Goods: At estimated cost or net realizable value (whichever is lower)
4. By Products: At net realizable value.

Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Revenue recoBnition

Revenue fiom sale of products is recognized on transfer ol all signiticant risk and rewards of ownership of
products to the customers, lvhich is generally on dispatch ofgoods. Sales are stated exclusive ofValue Added Tax.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

lnterest income is recoSnized olr the time proPortion basis.

Export incentives receivable are accrued for when the right to receive the credit is established and there is no

significanl uncertainty rcgarding the ultiDate collection ofexport proceeds.

I

I

t.5

1.7

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

1.8 Employee Benefits

(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and short term compensated absences, etc. are recognized in
the period in which the employee renders the related services.

(b) Post- Emplo).ment Benefits

(i) Definid Contribution Plans: The Employee State lnsurance Scheme aod Contributory Provident Fund
adrninistered by Provident Fund Commissioner are defined contribution plans. The Company's contribution
paid/payable under the schenes is recognized as expense in the proftt and loss account during the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Deffned Benefit Plans: The Company has taken Group Gratuity and Cash Accumulation Poiicy issued by the Life
Insumnce Corporation of India (LIC). The present value of the obligation under such defined beneftt plans is

determined based on actuarial valuation as advised by LIC, using the Projected Unit Credit method, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement ard measures

each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the preseqt value ofthe obligation under defined benefit plans, are as advised by LIC.

Actuadal gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Profit & Loss Account.

1.9 Borrowing Costs

The borowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or productions of a qualifying asset

are capitalized as part ofthe cost ofthat asset. The amount ofborrowing cost eligible for capitalizatioo is determined in
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 16 Borrowing Costs issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
lndia (ICAI) and notified under the Companies Accounting Standard Rules 2005.

l.l0 Taxation

Tax expenses for the current year compdses of cusent tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the amount of tax payable

on tle taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions oflncome Tax Act 1961. Deferred
tax is recognized, on timing differences between the taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period
and are capable ofreversal in one or more subsequent periods.

l.l I Earning Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the
year by the weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the year

I.12 Provisions for contingencies

Provisions comprise liabilities ofuncerlain timing or amount. Provisions are recognized when the company recognile5
it has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and tlle amount can be reasonably estimated.

Disclosures for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow ofresources when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in resPect

of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Loss contingencies arising from claims, Iitigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable that
a liability has been incured and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements.

2.1 Pursuant to the order of the Hon'ble High Court of M.P Bench at Indore engineering moulding division of Kriti
Industries (lndia) Limited (KIIL) was hived off into the company w.e.f.lst January 2010. As per the scheme of
arrangement the company has issued 38, 75,000 Equity Shares ofRs l0/- each at a premium ofRs l0/- each to KIIL. The
10,000 Equity shares held by the promoters were also transferred during the year to KIIL. Thus the company has

become a who\ owled subsidiary ofKllL.

2.2 Documentation for Bank facilities with State Bank of India is pending for execution under the demerger scheme.

EI



(b) 3 03lm10

NIL

109598

109598

8776

70310

0

17475

206259

t!g3l20lo
NIL

404423

404423

36398

0.00

0.00

NIL

4/082r

3 Oy?.OtO

NIL

404423

404423

36398

0

0

440821

3 Olt200e

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

3tlo3l2009

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

3uo312009

NIL

NIL

NII,

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

a

I

I

(c)

(d)

|.

Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

5.

In the opinion ofthe Board ofDirecton ofthe Company, th€ Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a ralue realizable in
the ordinary course ofbusiless at least equal to the amount at which they are stated and provisions for all known liabilities

are adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

Conting€nt lirbilities

4.1 Installments of term loans frorn financial institutions falling due within one year are Rs 250.66 lacs (Previous year

Rs.NIL).

Company's Income tax assessments have been completed up to AssessrDent year 2008 2009. In the oPinion of Board of

Director's provision made for l-ncome Tax is adequate.

Micro, Small and Medium EDterprises Development Act, 2006:

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpdses Development Act, 2006 which came into force from 2nd October 2006,

certain disclosures are required ro be made relating to Micro, small and Medium Enterprises The ComPany is in the process

of compiling relative infoimation from it's suppliers about their coverage under the said act sioce the relevant information is

not t 
"dily 

*"il"bl.; no disclosures have been made in the accounts. Howeve! the Management is ofrle Yiew that, the i.rnpact

of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions ofthis act is not exPected to be material.

The disclosure required as per Accounting Standard (AS) 15 "Employees Benefit" issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants oflndia (ICAI) and notified under the comPfiies Accounting standards Rules' 2006 and based on the rePort

generated by Life Insurance Corporation oflndia (LIC) is as under

(a) The company has taken Group Gntuity and Cash Accumulatio! Policy issued by the LIC, which is a defined benefft

plan.

7.

K

Table showing chargcs in ptesert r"alue of obl[ation3 as on

Present valu€ of obligations as at beginning of the year

Add:- Transfer pursuant to scheme ofarrangement

Total Pres€nt value of obligations

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Benefit Paid

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations

Present value of obligations as at end of the year

Table showing changes in the fafu value of plan ass€ts as on

Fair value of plaa assets at beginning ofthe year

Add:- Transfer pursuant to scheme of arrangement

Total Present value ofobligations

Expected return on plan assets

Contribution

Benefit Paid

Actuarial gain/(loss) on Pla[ assets

Fair value of the plan assets at tle end of t}re year

Table showint fair value of pbn assets as on

Fair value of plan assets at beginning ofthe year

Add:- Transfer pursuant to scheme of arrangement

Total Present value of obligations

Actual return on plan assets

Contribution

Benefit Paid

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year

N

&

08



Kriti Industries (India) Ltd. K
NIL

NIL
Funded status

Excess of actual over estimated return on Plan assets

(Actual Rate of return= estimated rate of return as ARD falls on 3fl03/2010)

(e) Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized as on
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for th€ year-obligation
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year-Plan assets

Total (Gain)/Loss for the year

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the year

(f) Erpenses recognized in statement of profit and loss

Current Service Cost
Interest cost
Expected return on Plan Asset

Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the year

Expenses recognized in the stat€ment of Profit & loss

234562

NIL

S 03lmlo
(r7 475)

NiL
17475
1.7475

3U03/2010
70310

8776
(363e8)

17475

50163

3v0312009
NIL
NIL
NIL
ML

3llo3l2ffi9
NIL
NII,
NIL
NIL
NII,

(g) Assumption
Discount rate
Salary Escalation

SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3ISt MARCH' 2OTO.

Company has only one segment i.e. Moulding Division.

The arnount ofborrowing cost caPitalized during the year NIL (Previous Year NIL).

EARNING PER SIIARE

The Compan)'s share capital consists of equity share. The basic and diluted earning per share is calculated as under:

Year

8%

7%
8%

7%

8.

9.

10.

Number of Shdes at the Conmencement upto 31.12.2009 10000

Shares issued during the year Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement

approved by the Hon able high coun of M.P in Jan-2010 3875000

Weighted average No. ofShares for the Year 978750 10000

Profit contribution for Basic EPS (Amount in Rs.) 3247799 (2s307)

Extra Ordinary Items (Within the meaning ofAS-5, Net Profft or loss for the period'

Prior Period items and Changes in the Accounting Policies) ML

Basic Earning Per Share 3.32 (2.53)

7. Diluted Eaming Per Share (2.s3)

Nominal Value Per Share l0_00

I

i

I

I

I

I

I

td
tfi

15. ln accordance ,uith th. A."oor,til,g St"nd"rd 1A9 18 "Related Party Disclosures" issued by The Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India (ICAI) and n;fied under the Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 dre names ofthe related

parties and tlte relevant disclosule is as under:-

(a) Name of the related party and description of relationshiP:

i. Key Management Personnel:
Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, Director
Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta, Director

ii. Holding Company
M/s Iciti Industdes (India) Limited

iii. Companies/entities under the control of Key Management personnel

t) M/s. Chetak Builders Plt. Ltd.

2) M/s. Iciti CorPorate Services P!t. Ltd.
3) M/s. Shipra Pipes Plt. Ltd.
4) M/s. Sakam Trading Pvt. Ltd.
5) M/s. Ikiti Nutrients Ltd.

The following tansaction were caried out with the related parties in tlle ordinary course ofbusiness
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd, K
ln lacs)(Rs.

Sr. No, Companies/entities
utrder thc control

of IGy
ManaBement

Person!cl

l. O/s Unsecured Loan l.l7 NIL NIL NIL
taken (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)

Interest paid

Nature of
Transaction

Holding
Company

IGv
Management

Personnel

Relatives
of Key

Management
Personnel

2. O.2O NIL NIL NIL
(NrL) (NrL) (ML) (NrL)

12. In accordance wirh the Accounting Standard (AS) 22 "Accounting for Taxation" issued by The lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) and notified under the Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 the details ofDeferred Tax
items are as undet:

Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets:

On Account of Tax effect on timing difference

arising due to difference in D€preciation

13. Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary, however due to the effects of scheme of
arrangement in the current yea!, previous figues are Dot comparable.

2fit9-10

20.74l^cs

As per our report of even date attached.

For Subhash Deshpande & Co
Chartered Accountants

R.D. Asawa
(Partn€r)
M.No. 16562

Place : Indore
Date : 186 May,2010

for and on behalf of the Board of Directo.s

Shiv Singh M.hta
(Dircetor)

Menoj Fadnis
(Director)
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-IKriti Industries (India) Ltd.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAII ENDED AS AT 3lst MARCH' 2OIO

Rl ln lacs

PARTICULAR

A. Cssh Flow ftom op€nting .ctivi9
l.let Profit Before Tar & Extraordinary ltems
Adiuatments for:
Depreciation
Loss/(profit) on Sale of Fixed Asset

Dividend Income
Miscellaneous Income
Financial Charges
Prior Period Income/(Expens€s)
Opcr.ting Profft Before Working Capital Changes

Adiustmcnt for Woiking Cepitel Changes

Trade & Other Receivables
Inventories
Trade Payables

Cash Gencratcd from Operation
Financial Charges
Taxes paid

Net C.sh from Oper".tirg Activities (A)

B. Cash Flow from Invectlng Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets/ Capital
Sale of Fixed Assets

Sale/(Purchas€) of Investrnents

Miscellane.us Income
Dividend Income

Net Ce3h used for hvesting Activiries (B)

C Proc€eds fmm issue ofsha&s
Proceeds /(Repayment) from Long T€rm Borrowings
Short Term Loan movement
Effect of Exchange Rate Change

Unsecur€d loan
Dividend paid

N€t Cash us€d for Financing Activities (C )

Net Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C )
Opening Balance of cash & Cash Equivalents

Balance of Cash & Cash

As per our report ofeven date attached.
For Subhash Deshpande & Co.
Chartered Accountants

R,D- Asera'a

(Partn€r)
M.No. 16562

Place; Indore
Date : l8'h May, 2010

0.03
0.00
0.00

ffi

P€riod ended

3r.03.20r0

t4.23

16.19

0.00
0.00

(0.94)

12.12

0.00

Period ended

31.03.2009

(0.2s)

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

41.60

(694.10)
(r45.22)

504.81

0.23
0.00
o06

292.92
(r2.r2\

0.00

(864.8s)

0.00
0.00
0.94

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0-oo

775.00
250.66
156.00

0.00
r.25
0.00

13.96

0.22

14.18

- This Cash Flow includes non cash items putsuant to th€ scheme of arrangement approved durilg th€ year by the Hon'ble High Court of

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.03
0.19
0.22

Note :

M.P

for and on behalf of th€ Board of Directors

Shiv Singh Mehta
(Dirc€tor)

Manoj Fadais
(Director)
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Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

KRITI INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
' 

Regd. Office: "MEHTA CHAMBERS", 34, SIYAGANJ, INDORE - 452 007

ADMISSION -SLIP
Folio No. :

Please bring your copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting

No. of Shares Held :

I hereby record my presence at the 20s Annual General Meeting ofthe Company being held at "Chetak Charnb€rs", 4th Floor 14,

R.N.T. Marg, Indore - 452 001 (M.P) on Monday the 27s September, 2010 at 4.00 P.M.

Name of the Shareholder

Narne of the Prory Holder/Authorised Representative

Signature of the Shareholder/Prory/Authorised Representative

Not€s :

l. A member/proxy/authorised representatiye wishing to attend the Meeting must complete this Admission Slip before coming
to the MeetinS and hand it over at the entrance.

2. lf you intend to appoint a proxy, please complete, stamp, sign and deposit the Prory Form given below at th€ Company's

Registered Ofiic€ at least 48 hours befo-i the Meeting.

KRITI INDUSTRJES (INDIA) LIMITED

Regd. Office "MEHTA CHAMBERS", 34, SIYAGANL INDORE - 4s2 007

PROXY -FORM

a member/members of KRITI INDUSTRIES INDIA) LIMITED hereby appoint Shri/ Smt. /Km.

or failing him/her Shri /Smt. /Km.

failing him/h€r Shri /Smt./Km. as my/our proxy in my/our

absence to attend and vote for me./us and on my/our behalf at the 20'h Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on

Monday the 27d September, 2010 at 4.00 P.M. and at any adjournment thereof

Signed this day of ..............2010

Folio No :

No. of Shares Held :

Signatures

Note :

The Proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed, stamped and signed and must be deposited at the Registered Office

ofthe Company not less than 48 hours before the tim€ fixed for the Meeting.


